BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

PORT OF REDWOOD CITY CHAIR: LORIANNA KASTROP

AGENDA VICE CHAIR: STAN MAUPIN
REGULAR MEETING SECRETARY: NANCY C. RADCLIFFE
WEDNESDAY, 8:00 AM COMMISSIONER: RICHARD S. CLAIRE
MAY 22, 2024 COMMISSIONER: RALPH A. GARCIA

***HYBRID MEETING — IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEOCONFERENCE***

The BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS (BOARD) hereby provides notice that it will hold a regular meeting of the BOARD.
This meeting of the Board will be held in the Port Administrative Offices (located at 675 Seaport Boulevard, Redwood City,
California 94063), an alternative location of 244 Alameda de las Pulgas Boulevard, Redwood City, California 94062, and by
teleconference pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). Members of the public will be able to participate in the
meeting remotely via the Zoom platform or in person at the Port Administrative Offices and at the location referred to
above. Some of the COMMISSIONERS may attend the meeting and participate remotely to the same extent as if they were
present. The public is welcome to attend in person or alternatively via Zoom. PURSUANT TO THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT,
ALL VOTES SHALL BE BY ROLL CALL.

Members of the public may also access and observe the meeting by joining by video teleconference via Zoom at:
https://zoom.us/join Meeting ID: 985 1201 8699 Password: 85917060
Or use this link: https://usO6web.zoom.us/s/98512018699?pwd=dTc3a09SMWN5bDFQMFZMSDM4WVNSZz09

To join by audio teleconference: Phone: (669) 900-6833 or (346) 248-7799  Meeting ID: 985 1201 8699
The Port of Redwood City is not responsible for a member of the public’s technical ability to participate in the meeting.

HOW TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENTS BEFORE THE BOARD MEETING:

Members of the public may also submit public comments on items of public interest that are within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board via email to publiccomments@redwoodcityport.com. All public comments received by 7:45 AM
on the date of the Board meeting will be read into the record with a time limit of three minutes per commenter unless
otherwise indicated.

HOW TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENTS DURING THE BOARD MEETING:
By video conference, use the “Raise Hand” feature to request to speak.
By teleconference, press *9 to “Raise Hand” (request to speak) and *6 to unmute.

Members of the public in attendance at the meeting who wish to speak on a matter within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Port Commissioners should complete a speaker’s slip to be recognized by the Chair at the appropriate time. Public
comment from video teleconference will be heard first.

AGENDA ITEM
. CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Il. PUBLICCOMMENT — The Chair of the Board will recognize members of the public to make public comments onitems
of public interest that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Comments on non-agendized items will
be taken during the Public Comment period. Comments pertaining to agendized items will be taken at the time the
agenda item is considered. Public comments received via email as provided above will be read into the record with a
time limit of three minutes per commenter. No action will be taken on any public comment on a matter not appearing
on the Agenda as a separate item unless otherwise authorized by law.

. PPROVAL OF MINUTES — MAY 8, 2024
ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE; PUBLIC COMMENT; ROLL CALL VOTE

IV. APPROVAL OF CLAIMS — MAY 8, 2024
ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE; PUBLIC COMMENT; ROLL CALL VOTE
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VI.

Vil.

VII.

Xl.

Xil.

ORDINANCES

ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY
APPROPRIATING ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS OF THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2025 — PUBLIC HEARING

CEQA: THE ACTION BEFORE THE BOARD IS NOT SUBJECT TO CEQA REVIEW PROCESS PURSUANT TO RESOURCE CODE,
SECTION 21065 AND GUIDELINES, SECTION 15378

ACTION: MOTION TO WAIVE THE SECOND READING AND ADOPT THE ORDINANCE; PUBLIC COMMENT; ROLL CALL
VOTE

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY APPROVING STANDARD
FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT - (PORTSIDE INVESTORS - PHASE | LEASE AGREEMENT) - (JOHN
DALRYMPLE, AN INDIVIDUAL)

CEQA: THE ACTION BEFORE THE BOARD IS NOT SUBJECT TO CEQA REVIEW PROCESS PURSUANT TO RESOURCE CODE,
SECTION 21065 AND GUIDELINES, SECTION 15378
ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE; PUBLIC COMMENT; ROLL CALL VOTE

MOTIONS— NONE

REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

A. | RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (MAZE & ASSOCIATES) |

CEQA: THE ACTION BEFORE THE BOARD IS NOT SUBJECT TO CEQA REVIEW PROCESS PURSUANT TO RESOURCE CODE,
SECTION 21065 AND GUIDELINES, SECTION 15378
ACTION: PUBLIC COMMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
MATTERS OF BOARD INTEREST
CLOSED SESSION — NONE

ADJOURNMENT — TO REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 12, 2024
ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE; PUBLIC COMMENT; ROLL CALL VOTE

DOCUMENTS: Public records that relate to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of the Port Commissioners, which
are released less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, are available to the public at the Port offices at 675 Seaport Boulevard, Redwood City, CA, 94063.

ALTERNATIVE AGENDA FCRMATS: The Board of the Port Commissioners will provide public records in appropriate alternative formats upon request
by any person with a disability consistent with the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and disability related accommodation to enable
participating in the public meeting consistent with federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Please send a written request to the Clerk of the
Board at the Port of Redwoad City, 675 Seaport Boulevard, Redwood City, CA, 94063, or via email at info@redwoodcityoort.com and include address,
phone number and brief description of the requested materials and preferred alternative format or auxiliary ad or service at least seven calendar
days before the meeting.
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BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

PORT OF REDWOOD CITY CHAIR: LORIANNA KASTROP

MINUTES VICE CHAIR: STAN MAUPIN
REGULAR MEETING SECRETARY: NANCY C. RADCLIFFE
WEDNESDAY, 8:00 AM COMMISSIONER: RICHARD S. CLAIRE
MAY 8, 2024 COMMISSIONER: RALPH A. GARCIA

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Board of Port Commissioners held its regular meeting in person at the Port Administrative Offices and via
video/teleconference, pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). Members of the public participated in the
meeting as well as remotely via the Zoom platform or in person at the Port Administrative Offices. Pursuant to the Ralph
M. Brown Act, all votes were by roll call and the meeting was available to the public to attend and provide public
comments via audio/video teleconference.

Chair Lorianna Kastrop, presiding

Commissioners Present: Richard Claire, Ralph Garcia, Stan Maupin and Lorianna Kastrop

Commissioners Absent: Nancy C. Radcliffe

Port Executives Present: Executive Director, Kristine A. Zortman; Director of Finance and Administration, Rajesh Sewak
and Port Attorney, Francois X. Sorba

Chair Kastrop called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM. Clerk of the Board Linda Alvarado conducted roll call and confirmed
a meeting quorum with Commissioners Claire, Garcia, Maupin and-Kastrop in attendance. Commissioner Garcia led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Executive Director Zortman confirmed that there were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting who
wished to make public comment on non-agendized items.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — APRIL 24, 2024

After inviting public comment, Chair Kastrop confirmed with Executive Director Zortman that there were no members of
the public in attendance at the meeting who wished to make public comment on this agenda item. A motion to approve
minutes dated April 24, 2024 was made by Commissioner Maupin and was seconded by Commissioner Garcia. The motion
passed 4-0 voice roll call vote with Commissioner Radcliffe having an excused absence.

APPROVAL OF CLAIMS — NONE

ORDINANCES

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY

APPROPRIATING ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS OF THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE

FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 — JUNE 30, 2025
On April 26, 2024 the ad-hoc Finance Committee convened with staff on the Preliminary Port Budget for fiscal year
2024/2025 (Fy2025). Executive Director Zortman introduced Rajesh Sewak, Director of Finance and Administration. Mr.
Sewak presented a brief overview of the proposed Fy2025 budget. Mr. Sewak stated the Preliminary Budget is based on
an estimated 1.9 million metric tons (mt) of cargo. Mr. Sewak also stated the total operating revenue in the Preliminary
Budget of $10.3 million, with operating expenses increased due to higher costs to preventative maintenance, employee
costs, utilities and insurances. After inviting public comment, Chair Kastrop confirmed with Executive Director Zortman
that there were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting who wished to make public comment on this
agenda item. A motion to waive the full reading and introduce the ordinance was made by Commissioner Garcia and was
seconded by Commissioner Maupin. The motion passed 4-0 by roll call vote with Commissioner Radcliffe having an
excused absence.

DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING — MAY 8, 2024
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
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VI.

VII.

VIIl.

RESOLUTIONS — NONE

MOTIONS
MOTION OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY APPROVING FISCAL YEAR
2024/2025 CALL FOR SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM AWARDEES
Executive Director Zortman introduced Trish Wagner, Business Development Manager. Ms. Wagner requested the Board
of Port Commissioners approve various local non-profit organizations who had applied for the Port’s Fiscal Year
2024/2025 Call for Sponsorship Program. Ms. Wagner stated if approved a total of $18,500 will be allocated to local
nonprofits that met the Port’s four focus areas and included an outline of how the funds are to be utilized. After inviting
public comment, Chair Kastrop confirmed with Executive Director Zortman that there were no members of the public in
attendance at the meeting who wished to make public comment on this agenda item. A motion to approve Fiscal Year
2024/2025 Sponsorship Program Awardees was made by Commissioner Maupin and was seconded by Commissioner
Garcia. The motion passed 4-0 by roll call vote with Commissioner Radcliffe having an excused absence.

REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS — NONE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

On April 25, 2024 staff hosted this season’s final Lunch and Learn. On May 4, 2024 the Port hosted its second annual
Drone Show (Drone Show). Executive Director stated this year was a success noting more people showed up than
anticipated. Executive Director Zortman thanked Trish Wagner, Business Development Manager and the Operations
Team on coordination and maintenance of the successful event. On May 15, 2024 the Port will host a Scoping Session on
the upcoming ferry project environmental review process. On May 9, 2024 the Water Emergency Transportation
Authority Board will vote on Redwood City Ballpark Service Pilot Project, a partnership to deliver people to the San
Francisco Giants games on certain Sundays. Executive Director Zortman stated dredging will end at the end of May.
Executive Director Zortman stated staff will be meeting with the City of Redwood City regarding the proposed
modification to the Business License Tax, a substantially large increase to businesses that would impact both businesses
and the Port’s revenue.

MATTERS OF BOARD INTEREST

On May 4, 2024 Commissioner Maupin attended the second annual Drone Show, Commissioner Maupin stated the event
was amazing. On April 26, 2024 Commissioner Maupin attended the City of Redwood City’s 101/84 ad-hoc Committee
Meeting. On May 4, 2024 Chair Kastrop attended the Drone Show and congratulated staff on its success. Chair Kastrop
stated she will attend San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission's subcommittee meeting called
Sediment and Beneficial Reuse Working Group.

DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING — MAY 8, 2024
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
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Xl.  CLOSED SESSION — CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL TWO (2) CASES
A. ANTICIPATED LITIGATION — SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION SUBDIVISION (d){2) AND (e){1) OF SECTION
54956.9 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE ONE (1) CASE
B. PENDING LITIGATION — SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION SUBDIVISION (d)(1) OF SECTION 54956.9 OF THE
GOVERNMENT CODE ONE (1) CASE
CASE NAME UNSPECIFIED. DISCLOSURE WOULD JEOPARDIZE EXISTING SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS
Chair Kastrop convened the Board into a Closed Session at 8:47 AM for the above matters.
Chair Kastrop reconvened the Board into Open Session at 9:20 AM, stating no reportable actions from Closed Session.

Xll.  ADJOURNMENT — TO REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 22, 2024
After inviting public comment, Chair Kastrop confirmed with Executive Director Zortman that there were no members of
the public in attendance at the meeting who wished to make public comment on this agenda item. A motion to adjourn
the meeting was made by Commissioner Garcia and was seconded by Commissioner Maupin. The motion passed 4-0
voice roll call vote with Commissioner Radcliffe having an excused absence. The meeting was adjourned by Chair Kastrop
at 9:21 AM to its next regularly scheduled meeting on May 22, 2024.

DRAFT MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING — MAY 8, 2024
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
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BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF REDWOOD CITY

STAFF REPORT

DATE: MAY 22, 2024
ITEM NO: V.A
SUBMITTED BY: Rajesh Sewak, Director of Finance & Administration

TITLE: ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
REDWOOD CITY APPROPRIATING ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS
OF THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 — JUNE 30, 2025 -
PUBLIC HEARING

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Board of Port Commissioners (Board) adopt the Port of Redwood City’s (Port)
Fy2025 Budget Ordinance.

BACKGROUND

On May 8, 2024, the Ordinance was introduced by the Board. On May 12, 2024, the Notice of Public Hearing
and Ordinance was published in the San Francisco Examiner (Attachment A).

As of today, there have been no changes to the Ordinance since its introduction on May 8, 2024.

ANALYSIS

See analysis in the May 8, 2024, Staff Report when the Ordinance was introduced (Attachment B).
Cost Recovery N/A
Port 2020 Vision Comports with the Port’s 2020 Vision
Budget FY2025 Budget

ALTERNATIVES

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The action before the Board for consideration today is not subject to the CEQA review process pursuant to
Resource Code, Section 21065 and Guidelines, Section 15378.

Ltfih gr
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StaV' ¢ V' Executive Director

ATTACHMENTS
A. Notice of Public Hearing Proof of Publication printed in the San Francisco Examiner on May 12, 2024
B. Staff Report dated May 8, 2024 (with attachments)
C. Ordinance
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| San Francisco Fxaminer | Sunday, May 12, 2024

ATTACHMENT A

San Francisco Lxaminer P UBLIC N OTICES

San Mareo County: 650-556-1556 « E-mail: smlegals @sfmediaco.com
San Francisco: 415-314-1835 « E-mail: sflegals @sfmediaco.com
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REDWOOD CITY,

Redwood City; and

authorized:
Line Item 1.
Line Item 2.
Line Item 3.
Line Item 4.

Line Item 5.

ORDINANCE NO. P-

ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY APPROPRIATING
ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS OF THE PORT
OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 — JUNE 30, 2025
— PUBLIC HEARING

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF

AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, an annual budget containing an estimate of the revenues and expenses of
the Port of Redwood City for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025,

has been presented to and approved by the Board of Port Commissioners of the Port of

WHEREAS, said Board desires and intends to appropriate and authorize the
expenditure of said anticipated revenues in accordance with the above-mentioned budget.

NOW THEREFORE;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY BOARD OF PORT
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. GENERAL. The estimated revenues of the Port of Redwood City for Fiscal
Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and all unexpended and unencumbered monies remaining
in the Port funds at the close of Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024 are hereby allocated
and appropriated as hereinafter provided.

SECTION 2. OPERATING EXPENSES - OPERATIONS. The sums hereinafter specified
are hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of operating expenses in
connection with the operation of the Port of Redwood City during Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 —
June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sums for the purposes stated herein is hereby

Marine Terminal
Recreational Boating
Commercial
Infrastructure
General Maintenance

Total-Operations

SECTION 3. OPERATING EXPENSES - ADMINISTRATION. The sums hereinafter specified

authorized:

Line Item 1.
Line Item 2.
Line Item 3.
Line Item 4.
Line ltem 5.

are hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of operating expenses in
connection with the administration of the Port of Redwood City during Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 —

June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sums for the purposes stated herein is hereby

Admin Salaries, Taxes & Benefits
Office & Administrative Expenses
Professional Services

Promotion & Marketing
Depreciation (Admin only)
Total-Administration

SECTION 4. SUBVENTION. The sum of Six Hundred Nineteen Thousand and Seven
Hundred Thirty Five dollars ($619,735) for voluntary Subvention to the City of Redwood City is
hereby appropriated from general Port funds (derived from sources other than State granted
lands) should the Board of Port Commissioners deem such funds as surplus and provided such

payment does not violate Revenue Bond covenants and applicable state and federal laws.

SECTION 5. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 INTEREST. For purposes of this

is hereby authorized.

hereby authorized.

authorized.

Ordinance, “Revenue Bonds Series 2015” refers to those bonds authorized, issued and
outstanding pursuant to Resolution No. P-2267 entitled “Resolution of the Board of Port
Commissioners of the Port Department of the City of Redwood City Authorizing the Issuance of
Revenue Bonds, Approving an Official Statement, Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a
Third Supplemental Indenture, and Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement and a Bond Purchase

Agreement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.”

The sum of One Hundred Eighteen Thousand and Two Hundred Forty dollars
($118,240) is hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of interest on the
Revenue Bonds Series 2015 during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and the
expenditure of said sum for such purpose is hereby authorized.

SECTION 6. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015-PRINCIPAL. The sum of Four Hundred
Eighty Six Thousand and Six Hundred Sixty Seven dollars ($486,667) is hereby appropriated
from general Port funds for the payment of principal of the Revenue Bonds Series 2015 during

the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum for such purpose

SECTION 7. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012 INTEREST. For purposes of this
Ordinance, “Revenue Bonds Series 2012 refers to those bonds authorized, issued and
outstanding pursuant to Resolution No. P-2178 entitled “Resolution of the Board of Port
Commissioners of the Port Department of the City of Redwood City Authorizing the Issuance of
Revenue Bonds and the Execution and Delivery of a Second Supplemental Indenture and a
Bond Purchase Agreement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.”

The sum of Two Hundred One Thousand and One Hundred Eighty Five dollars
($201,185) is hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of interest on the
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and the

expenditure of said sum for such purpose is hereby authorized.

SECTION 8. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012-PRINCIPAL. The sum of Five Hundred
Forty One Thousand and One Hundred Nine dollars ($541,109) is hereby appropriated from
general Port funds for the payment of principal of the Revenue Bonds Series 2012 during the
Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum for such purpose is

SECTION 9. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012-RESERVES. The sum of Seven
Hundred Forty Two Thousand and Two Hundred Ninety Four dollars ($742,294) theretofore
appropriated, transferred and carried over in the Parity Bond Reserve Fund account held by the
Trustee, is hereby re-appropriated and maintained pursuant to Resolution No. P-2178 during
the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025.

SECTION 10. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. The sum of Two Million and Eight Hundred
Thousand dollars ($2,800,000) is hereby appropriated from Port Reserve Fund and Grant Fund
in connection with Capital Improvements Program for the Port of Redwood City during the Fiscal

Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and this expenditure of said sum for the purpose stated is

SECTION 11. RESERVE FUNDING. The sum remaining in the general Port funds as of

appropriations.

Redwood City this

Attest:

June 30, 2024, less a prudent amount to be retained in the general Port funds, is hereby
appropriated from General Fund to Reserve Fund in connection with contingent expenditure for
the operation, administration, and/or capital improvement program of the Port of Redwood City
during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum and for the
purpose stated is authorized.

SECTION 12. TRANSFER, ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS, CANCELLATIONS. The Board
of Port Commissioners may consent to the transfer of sums from an appropriated operating
expense line item to any other appropriated operating expense line item within each Section.
Transfers in excess of $25,000 per operating expense line item shall be by Resolution.

The Board of Port Commissioners may, by Resolution, transfer appropriated sums from

one Section to another, authorize additional appropriations, and cancel previously authorized

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after
its adoption and shall be operative as of July 1, 2024.

AR AR TR KT

Introduced on the 8" day of May 2024.

Passed and adopted as an Ordinance by the Board of Port Commissioners of the City of

day of

AYES, Commissioners:
NOES, Commissioners:
ABSTAIN, Commissioners:

ABSENT, Commissioners:

, 2024 by the following vote:

2,365,189
593,686
575,983

1,053,539

$ 619,990

$ 5,208,387

$
$
$
$

$1,368,140
$ 217,198
$ 360,880
$ 355,000
$ 18,036
$2,319,254

PRESIDENT,

BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

SECRETARY,

BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

CNSB # 3812743

GOVERNMENT

-11:30 AM
LEGISLATIVE CHAMBER,

ROOM 250, City Hall
1 DR. CARLTON B.

GOODLETT PLACE, SAN

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING
BUDGET AND
APPROPRIATIONS
COMMITTEE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE CITY AND COUNTY
OF SAN FRANCISCO
WEDNESDAY, MAY 22, 2024

FRANCISCO, CA 94102

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN
THAT the Board of Supervisors
of the City and County of San
Budget and
Appropriations Committee will

Francisco’s

hold a public hearing
consider  the
proposal

following
and said public
hearing will be held as follows,
at which time all interested

parties may attend and be
heard: File No. 240457.
Ordinance amending the
Building Code to adjust fees
charged by the Department of
Building  Inspection, and
affirming the  Planning
Department’s determination
under the California
Environmental Quality Act. If
this  legislation  passes,
Building Code, Chapter 1A,
will be amended to raise fees
in the tables of Section 110A.
Table 1A-A will be modified for
Building Permit Fees with total

J3 e sglon

NOTICE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED VEHICLE ELECTRIC CHARGING ONLY PARKING FINE.

The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) Board of Directors will hold a public hearing
on Tuesday, May 21, 2024, to consider a proposed Vehicle Electric Charging Only parking fine. The hearing
will be held at City Hall, #1Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 400 at 1:00 p.m. Additional information
can be obtained at www.sfmta.com.

415.646.4470: For free interpretation services, please submit your request 48 hours in advance of
meeting. / Para servicios de interpretacion gratuitos, por favor haga su peticion 48 horas antes de la
reunion. / NSREEAEEEE, BNEHIR48/ N \HREER,
interpretasyon, kailangan mag-request 48 oras bago ang miting. / D&i v&i dich vu théng dich mién phi, vui
long glti yéu cdu cla ban 48 gidy trwdc cude hop. / Ona becnnaTHbix ycayr ycTHoro nepesoga npockba
npeacTaBuTh Baw 3anpoc 3a 48 yacos oo Havasna cobpanus. / Pour les services d'interprétation gratuits,
veuillez soumettre votre demande 48 heures avant la réunion. / -5 £ AU~ Y32 H 3] 9] 48

A zE A At @3 g AFSAIA L./ ERHEIRY — E X% CHEEOBEE. KFE0 48R
FTITUZIZANERHEL TLEE, [ usmslfmiasomde unaumundhunusnvls N
sz Tagdoauds shaviln 48 B2 Tua / 48 Jdb g @ VI 5,10 380 3ikad3td sdidas 398 1up agdinddes

/ Para sa libreng serbisyo sa

CNSB #3811032

CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City
Council of the City of South San Francisco, California, will
hold a public hearing at a meeting on Wednesday, May 22,
2024, at 6:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter may
be heard, in the Council Chambers at the Library, Parks and
Recreation Building, 901 Civic Campus Way, South San
Francisco, California, for consideration of the following, at
which time and place any and all persons interested may
appear and be heard thereon. City of South San Francisco
/ Applicant City of South San Francisco / Owner Zoning
Ordinance Cleanup P23-0128; ZA23-0003 Consideration
and approval of Planning Commission’s recommendation
to City Council to adopt an ordinance amending Title
20 of the South San Francisco Municipal Code to make
minor revisions, corrections, and clarifications; modify
and add development standards to implement Housing
Element programs and policies; and update regulations
pertaining to accessory dwelling units, and determination
that the proposed amendments are categorically exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). If
you challenge in court the action taken by the City Council
regarding the items described above, you may be limited
to raising only those issues you or someone else raised
at the public hearing described in this notice or in written
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to,
the public hearing. This meeting is held in-person. In the
event that the City Council meets by teleconference under
circumstances permitted by and consistent with the Brown
Act as amended by AB 361 (2021), the City will not provide
a physical location for members of the public to participate
in the teleconference meeting. Written correspondence
may be submitted to the attention of the City Council, at
the address below. The instructions for joining this meeting
will be available on the City’'s website: https://www.ssf.
net/services/legislative-body-meeting-notices-materials
Submit e-comments by 4:30 p.m. on the meeting date.
Comments received by the deadline will be forwarded to
the City Council and will be entered into the record for
the meeting. Use the e-comment portal by clicking on the
following link: https://ci-ssf-ca.granicusideas.com/meetings
or by visiting the City Council meeting’s agenda page. If
you have any questions regarding this matter, contact the
City Clerk, at 400 Grand Avenue, South San Francisco,
CA 94080 or (650) 877-8518. /s/ Rosa Govea Acosta, City
Clerk City of South San Francisco

CNSB # 3812776

valuation of $1.00 to $2,000;
new construction plan review
fees for the first $500 will
increase from $150.98 to $163
plus each additional $100 or
fraction thereof, to and
including $2,000 will increase
from $6.27 to $7.32, and
permit issuance fees for the
first $500 will increase from
$64.71 to $116.58 plus each
additional $100 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$2.68 to $7.68; alterations to
plan review fees for each
additional $100 or fraction
thereof above $500 will
increase from $3.37 to $6.45
alterations to permit issuance
fees for the first $500 will
increase from $71.39 to
$128.31 plus each additional
$100 or fraction thereof will
increase from $1.45 to $7.68;
and no plans permit issuance
fees for each additional $100
or fraction thereof will increase
from $4.27 to $7.68. Building
Permit Fees with total
valuation of $2,001 to $50,000:
new construction plan review
fees for the first $2,000 will
increase from $244.48 to $273
plus each additional $1,000 or
fraction thereof, to and
including $50,000 will increase
from $14.97 to $17.01, and
permit issuance fees for the
first $2,000 will increase from
$104.90 to 188.54;
alterations to plan review fees
for the first $2,000 will
increase from $217.12 to
$259.97 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $20.44 to
$21.85, and alterations to
permit issuance fees for the
first $2,000 will increase from
$93.13 to $167.59; and no
plans permit issuance fees for
the first $2,000 will increase
from $256.68 to $284 plus
each additional $1,000 or
fraction thereof will increase
from $6.23 to $7.97. Building
Permit Fees with total
valuation of $50,001 to
$200,000: new construction
plan review fees for the first
$50,000 will increase from
$963.18 to $1,089 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof, to and including
$200,000 will increase from
$9.98 to $10.19, and permit
issuance fees for the first
$50,000 will increase from
$412.92 to $452 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$4.28 to $4.96; alterations to
plan review fees for the first
$50,000 will increase from
$1,198.02 to $1,309 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$12.22 to $12.74; and no
plans permit issuance fee for
the first $50,000 will increase
from $555.86 to $666 plus
each additional $1,000 or
fraction thereof will increase
from $3.06 to $7.97. Building
Permit Fees with total
valuation of $200,001 to
$500,000: new construction
plan review fees for the first
$200,000 will increase from
$2,460.48 to $2,618 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof, to and including
$500,000 will increase from
$6.98 to $7.22; and permit
issuance fees for the first
$200,000 will increase from
$1,054.62 to $1,197 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$2.99 to $3.76; and alterations
to plan review fees for the first
$200,000 will increase from
$3,031.70 to $3,221 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$9.98 to $10.69. Building
Permit Fees with total
valuation of $500,001 to
$1,000,000: new construction
plan review fees for the first
$500,000 will increase from
$4,554.63 to $4,785 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof, to and including
$1,000 will increase from
$6.23 to $6.93; and permit
issuance fees for the first
$500,000 will increase from
$1,951.62 to $2,324 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$2.68 to $2.87; alterations to
plan review fees for the first
$500,000 will increase from
$6,026.30 to $6,427 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$6.87 to $7.58. Building Permit
Fees with total valuation of
$1,000,001 to $5,000,000:
new construction plan review
fees for the first $1,000,000
will increase from $7,671.13 to
$8,253 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof, to
and including $5,000,000 will
increase from $5.49 to $5.55,
and permit issuance fees for
the first $1,000,000 will
increase from $3,291.37 to

$3,759 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $2.36 to $2.47;
and alterations to plan review
fees for the first $1,000,000
will increase from $9,459.05 to
$10,218 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $6.23 to $6.97.
Building Permit Fees with total
valuation of $5,000,001 to
$50,000,000; new construction
plan review fees for the first
$5,000,000 will increase from
$29,614 to $30,457 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$2.14 to $2.33, and permit
issuance fees for the first
$5,000,000 will increase from
$12,721 to $13,648 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$1.20 to $1.29; alterations to
plan review fees for the first
$5,000,000 will increase from
$34,391 to $38,116 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$1.92 to $2.02, and alterations
to permit issuance fees above
$5,000,000 for each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $1.08 to $1.29.
Building Permit Fees with total
valuation of $50,000,000 to
$100,000,000: new
construction plan review fees
for the first $50,000,000 will
increase from $125,869 to
$135,479, and permit
issuance fees for the first
$50,000,000 will increase from
$66,541 to $71,672;
alterations to plan review fees
for the first $50,000,000 will
increase from $120,813 to
$128,831 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $2.36 to $2.78,
and alterations permit
issuance fees for the first
$50,000,000 will increase from
$63,419 to $71,672 plus each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof will increase from
$1.69 to $1.46. Building Permit
Fees with total valuation of
$100,000,000 to
$200,000.000: new
construction plan review fees
for the first $100,000,000 will
increase from $233,969 to
$240,442 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $0.97 to $2.39,
and permit issuance fees for
the first $100,000,000 will
increase from $143,591 to
$144,627 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $1.06 to $2.37;
alterations to plan review fees
for the first $100,000,000 will
increase from $238,688 to
$267,752 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $0.86 to $2.67,
and alterations to permit
issuance fees for each
additional $1,000 or fraction
thereof above $100,000,000
will increase from $0.97 to
$2.37. Building Permit Fees
with  total valuation of
$200,000,000 and up: new
construction plan review fees
for the first $200,000,000 will
increase from $330,569 to
$479,707 plus each additional
$1,000 or fraction thereof will
increase from $1.77 to $2.39,
and permit issuance fees for
the first $200,000,000 will
increase from $249,391 to
$381,396; alterations to plan
review fees for the first
$200,000,000 will increase
from $324,938 to $534,326
plus each additional $1,000 or
fraction thereof will increase
from $1.83 to $2.67, and
alterations to permit issuance
fees for the first $200,000,000
will increase from $244,544 to
$381,396. Table 1A-B will be
modified to establish a plan
review fee not covered in Table
1A-A and back check fee of
$280 per hour (minimum of
one hour), and a pre-
application plan review fee of
$239 per hour (minimum of
two hours). Table 1A-C will be
modified to establish hourly
permit issuance/inspection
rates of $280 per hour for
regular inspections and $300
per hour (minimum of two
hours) for off-hour inspections
for plan review fee not covered
in the table for Permit Issuance
fees by Category. Permit
issuance fees for Category 1P
- Single Residential Unit—
water service, sewer
replacement, single plumbing
fixture installation, shower pan
installation, or kitchen or
bathroom remodels  will
increase from $171.12 to
$205.28; Category 1M - Single
Residential Unit— mechanical
gas appliance (furnace,
hydronic heat, heat pump) will
increase from $160.43 to
$192.55; Category 2PA -
Plumbing installation for
residential construction with 6
or less dwelling units or guest

rooms; without underground
plumbing installation (includes
water, gas, waste, and vent)
will increase from $294.11 to
$352.24; Category 2PB -
Plumbing installation for
residential construction with 6
dwelling units or guest rooms
or less; with underground
plumbing installation (includes
water, gas, waste, and vent)
will increase from $427.80 to
$513.49; Category 2M -
Mechanical gas appliances for
residential construction with 6
dwelling units or guest rooms
or less will increase from
$256.68 to $309.16; Category
3PA — 7-12 Dwelling Units will
increase from $614.96 to
$738.97; Category 3PB -
13-36 Dwelling Units  will
increase from $1,229.93 to
$1,478.93; Category 3PC -
Over 36 Dwelling Units will
increase from $5,133.60 to
$6,172.56; Category 3MA -
7-12  Dwelling  Units  will
increase from $614.96 to
$740.19; Category 3MB -
13-36 Dwelling Units  will
increase from $1,229.93 to
$1,472.17; Category 3MC —
Over 36 Dwelling Units will
increase from $5,133.60 to
$6,149.75; Category 4PA -
Fire sprinklers — one and two
family dwelling units  will
increase from $160.43 to
$192.55; Category 4PB - Fire
sprinklers — 3 or more dwelling
units or guest rooms,
commercial and office — per
floor will increase from
$267.38 to $321.90; Category
5P/5M - Office, mercantile &
retail buildings: New or Tenant
Improvements; heating/
cooling equipment to piping
connected thereto— per tenant
or per floor, whichever is less
will increase from $347.59 to
$418.54; Category 6PA -
Restaurants (new  and
remodel) fee includes 5 or less
drainage and or gas outlets—
no fees required for public or
private restroom will increase
from $332.61 to $398.37;
Category 6PB - Restaurants
(new and remodel) fee
includes 6 or more drainage
and/or gas outlets— no fees
required for public or private
restroom will increase from
$941.16 to  $1,125.42;
Category 8 - New boiler
installations over 200 kbtu will
increase from $294.11 to
$353.30; Category 9P/M -
Surveys will increase from
$320.85 to $385.74; and
Category 10P/M -
Condominium conversions will
increase from $390.37 to
$468.95. Table 1A-D for
standard hourly rates for plan
review will be modified to
increase from $200 to $439
per hour; inspection rates will
increase from $181.82 to $461
per hour, and establish a $511
per hour rate for off-hour
inspections; administration will
increase from $111.23 to $214
per hour. Table 1A-E will be
modified to establish issuance/
inspection rates of $280 per
hour for regular inspections
and $300 per hour (minimum
of two hours) for off-hour
inspections for installations
not covered by this fee
schedule. Category 1 -
General Wiring: Residential
Buildings up to 10,000 sq. ft.
up to 10 outlets and/or devices
will increase from $171.12 to
$204.71; 11 to 20 outlets and/
or devices will increase from
$256.68 to $307.06; up to 40
outlets and or devices,
includes up to 200 Amp
service upgrade, will increase
from $320.85 to $386.37;
more than 40 outlets and/or
devices will increase from
$448.85 to $536.98; and
buildings of 5,000 to 10,000
sq. ft. will increase from
$641.70 to $772.40. Category
2 - General Wiring:
Nonresidential Buildings &
Residential Buildings over
10,000 sq. ft. up to 5 outlets
and/or devices will increase
from $256.68 to $307.06; 6 to
20 outlets and/or devices will
increase from $385.02 to
$460.94; areas up to 2,500 sq.
ft. will increase from $513.36
to $617.19; 2,501 to 5,000 sq.
ft. will increase from $770.04
to $927.68; 5,001 to 10,000
sq. ft. will increase from
$1,283 to $1,538; 10,001 to
30,000 sq. ft. will increase
from $2,567 to $3,069; 30,001
to 50,000 sq. ft. will increase
from $5,134 to $6,153; 50,001
to 100,000 sq. ft. will increase
from $7,700 to $9,255;
100,001 to 500,000 sq. ft. will
increase from $15,401 to
$18,433; 500,001 to 1,000,000
sq. ft. will increase from
$34,652 to $41,519; and more
than 1,000,000 sq. ft. will
increase from $69,304 to
$82,990. Category 3 - Service
Distribution and Utilization
Equipment of 225 amps rating
or less will increase from
$256.68 to $307.73; 250 to
500 amps will increase from
$385.02 to $460.44; 600 to
1000 amps will increase from
$513.36 to $614.72; 1,200 to
2,000 amps will increase from
$770.04 to $924.29; more
than 2,000 amps will increase
from $1,026.72 to $1,230.78;
600 volts or more will increase
from $1,026.72 to $1,230.78;
150 kva or less will increase
from $256.68 to $308.22; 151
kva or more will increase from
$385.02 to $460.44; and Fire
Pump installations  will
increase from $513.36 to
$616.77. Category 4 -
Installations of Fire Warning
and Controlled Devices up to
2,500 sq. ft. will increase from
$256.68 to $307.55; 2,501 to
5,000 sq. ft. will increase from
$385.02 to $460.43; 5,001 to
10,000 sq. ft. will increase
from $770.04 to $927.68;
10,001 to 30,000 sq. ft. will
increase from $1,283 to
$1,539; 30,001 to 50,000 sq.
ft. will increase from $2,567 to
$3,087; 50,001 to 100,000 sq.
ft. will increase from $5,134 to
$6,153; 100,001 to 500,000
sq. ft. will increase from
$7,700 to $9,217; 500,001 to
1,000,000 sq. ft. will increase
from $17,326 to $20,822; and
more than 1,000,000 sq. ft. will
increase from $34,652 to
$41,466. Fire Warning and
Controlled Devices (Retrofit
Systems) for buildings of not
more than 6 dwelling units will
increase from $385.02 to
$462.34; not more than 12
dwelling units will increase
from $513.36 to $614.71; with
more than 12 dwelling units
and non-residential occupancy
up to 3 floors will increase

from $770.04 to $923.18; 4-9
floors will increase from
$1,540.08 to $1,853.18; 10-20
floors  will increase from
$2,567 to $3,074; 21-30 floors
will increase from $5,134 to
$6,153; and more than 30
floors will increase from
$7,700 to $9,217. Category 5
— Miscellaneous Installations
for a remodel/upgrade of
existing hotel guest/SRO
rooms up to 6 rooms will
increase from $320.85 to
$385.86, and each additional
group of 3 rooms will increase
from $160.43 to $191.76;
data, communications, and
wireless system of 11 to 500
cables will increase from
$181.82 to $218.18, and each
additional group of 100 cables
will increase from $26.74 to
$32.11; security systems of 10
components or less will
increase from $181.82 to
$218.18, and each additional
group of 10 components will
increase from $10.70 to
$12.82; office workstations of
5 or less will increase from
$181.82 to $218.18, and each

additional group of 10
workstations  will increase
from $53.48 to $64.19;

temporary exhibition wiring
from 1 to 100 booths (1
inspection) will increase from
$256.68 to $307.55, and each
additional group of 10 booths
will increase from $26.74 to
$32.11; exterior electrical sign
will increase from $181.82 to
$218.18; interior electrical sign
will increase from $181.82 to
$218.18, and each additional
sign at the same address will
increase from $42.78 to
$51.26; garage door operator
requiring receptacle
installation will increase from
$181.82 to $218.18; quarterly
permits for a maximum of five
outlets in any one location will
increase from $401.06 to
$479.75; survey, per hour or
fraction thereof will increase
from $181.82 to $218.18;
survey, research, and report
preparation, per hour or
fraction thereof will increase
from $320.85 to $385.74;
witness testing: life safety, fire
warning, emergency, and
energy management systems
hourly and additional hourly
rate will increase from $181.82
to $280; energy management,
HVAC controls, and low-
voltage wiring systems for
1-10 floors (3 inspections) will
increase from $513.36 to
$614.78, and each additional
floor will increase from $53.48
to $64.19; and solar
photovoltaic systems with 10
KW rating or less will increase
from $181.82 to $218.18, and
each additional 10 KW rating
will increase from $106.95 to
$192.57. Table 1A-F -
Specialty Permit Fees will be
modified for garage door
permits fees for each garage
door in an existing building will
increase from $171.12 to
$256.62; reroofing permit fees
will increase from $171.12 to
$256.62 for Single-Family
homes and duplexes, and
increase from $256.68 to
$386.22 for all others. Table
1A-G_— Inspections, Surveys
and Reports will be modified
to establish an hourly rate of
$280 per hour; pre-application
inspection rate, and
re-inspection fee, and survey
of nonresidential buildings
with a minimum two hours of
$280 per hour; off-hours
inspection rate of $300 per
hour, minimum two hours plus
permit fee; and temporary
certificate of occupancy fee of
$545.46. Survey of residential
buildings for any purpose or
Condo Conversions for a
single unit will increase from
$1,871.63 to $2,804.07, two to
four units will increase from
$2,459.85 to $3,698.29, and
five+ units will increase from
$2,459.85 to $3,690.04 plus
Standard Hourly Inspection
Rate; hotels including 10
uestrooms will increase from
1,627.50 to $1,871.63, and
11+ guestrooms will increase
from $2,139 to $2,459.85 plus
an increase from $39.53 to
$59.30 per guestroom over 11.
Table 1A-J Miscellaneous
Fees will be modified to
establish a Central Permit
Bureau Processing Fee for
Miscellaneous Permits from
other disciplines of $166.64
per hour for a minimum one-
half hour, product approvals:
general approval — initial or
reinstatement, modification or
revision, or biannual renewal
of $300 per hour — minimum
three hours, and vacant
building — initial and annual
registration fee of $1,230.95.
Building numbers (each
entrance) for new addressed
will increase from $111.23 to
$166.61 and change of
existing addresses  will
increase from $224.60 to
$335.91; application extension
(in plan review) will increase
from $171.12 to $298.38 plus
20% of all plan review fees,
and permit extensions will
increase from $171.12 to
$298.38 plus 10% of all permit
issuance fees. Table 1A-K
Penalties, Hearings, Code
Enforcement  Assessments
will be modified to establish
Board of Examiners filing fees
of $280 per hour, with a
minimum of four hours, for
each appeal for variance from
interpretation of code
requirements, each appeal for
approval of substitute
materials or methods of
construction. A fee of $280 per
hour, with a minimum of two
hours, for Building Official’s
abatement order hearing,
emergency order, Access
Appeals Commission filing
fee/request for a rehearing,
Building Inspection
Commission hearing fees for
notice of appeal/request for
jurisdiction/request for
rehearing, and additional
hearings required by Code, of
$280 per hour. Abatement
Appeals Board hearing filing
fee will increase from $181.82
to $326.45 per case; lien
recordation charges  will
increase from $173.91 to
$200; and a violation
monitoring fee (in-house) of
$199.57 "per hour for a
minimum  one-half  hour
monthly. Table 1A-L — Public
Information will be modified to
establish a $214 per hour fee
with a three-quarter hour
minimum  for  structural
addition notices, posting of
notices (change of use), and
requesting notice of permit

issuance (each address) per
year. Affidavit record
maintenance will increase
from $15 to $53; and
Demolition notice of
application and  permit
issuance by area/interested
parties per area (1 area = 2
blocks) will increase from
$96.72 to $111.23 per year.
Table 1A-M — Boiler Fees will
be modified to establish a
$72.52 fee for permits to
operate or renew (certificate
issued) online, and
replacement of issued permit
to operate; and a $145.04 fee
for permits to operate or renew
(certificate issued) online
in-house, and connection to
utility company provided
steam (including permit to
operate). Boiler maintenance
program will increase from
$55.61 to $72.52. Table 1A-N
— Energy Conservation will be
modified for the initial
inspection of single-family
dwellings and two-family
dwellings to increase from
$181.82 to $273.45,
apartment  houses and
residential hotels up to 20
rooms to increase from
$272.72 to $409.46 and each
additional 10 rooms, or portion

thereof, will increase from
$90.91 to 136.36.
Compliance inspection of

single-family dwellings and
two-family ~ dwellings  will
increase ~ from $90.91 to
$136.36, apartment houses
and residential hotels up to 20
rooms will increase from
$136.37 to $204.18 and each
additional 10 rooms, or portion
thereof, will increase from
$55.61 to $83.19; energy
reports and certificates will
increase from $55.61 to
$83.64; filing fee for appeals
will increase from $111.23 to
$167.28; and certification of a
qualified energy inspector will
increase from $213.90 to
$319.88. Table 1A-P —
Residential Code Enforcement
and License Fees will be
modified to increase one- and
two-family dwelling unit fees
from $60 to $107 per rental
unit. Apartment house license
fees, per annum, of 3 to 12
units will increase from $375
to $514, 13 to 30 units will
increase from $561 to $798,
and more than 30 units will
increase from $561 to $1,012
and each additional 10 units or
portion thereof will increase
from $63 to $107. Hotel
license fees, per annum, of
hotels of 6 to 29 rooms will
increase from $294 to $530,
30 to 59 rooms will increase
from $541 to $843,60 to 149
rooms will increase from $672
to $1,012, 150 to 200 rooms
will increase from $759 to
$1,242, and more than 200
rooms would increase from
$759 to $1,579 and increase
from $63 to $107 for each
additional 25 rooms or portion
thereof. Table 1A-Q — Hotel
Conversion Ordinance Fees
will be modified to establish a
$280 per hour fee for appeals
of initial or annual status
determination, inspection staff
review of requests for hearing
to exceed 25% tourist season
rental limit, and inspection
staff review of unsuccessful
challenge of a usage report
and standard hourly inspection
of request for winter rental.
Annual usage reports will
increase from $113.23 to
$169.84; challenges to claims
of exemption usage reports
will increase from $55.61 to
$83.64, claims of exemption
based on low-income housing
will increase from $363.63 to
$546.46, and claims of
exemption based on partially
completed conversion  will
increase from $545.45 to
$820.19; complaint of unlawful
conversion will increase from
$55.61 to $83.64; initial usage
report will increase from
$363.63 to $546.46; permit to
convert will increase from
$545.45 to $818.01; statement
of exemption - Hearing Officer
fee for requests for hearing to
exceed 25% tourist season
rental limit will increase from
$363.63 to $542.82; and
statements of exemption -
Hearing Officer fee for
unsuccessful challenges of
usage reports will increase
from $363.63 to $546.46. In
accordance with
Administrative Code, Section
67.7-1, persons who are
unable to attend the hearing
on this matter may submit
written comments prior to the
time the hearing begins.
These comments will be made
as part of the official public
record in this matter and shall
be brought to the attention of
the Board of Supervisors.
Written comments should be
addressed to Angela Calvillo,
Clerk of the Board, City Hall, 1
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,
Room 244, San Francisco,
CA, 94102 or sent via email
(board.of.supervisors @sfgov.
org). Information relating to
this matter is available in the
Office of the Clerk of the
Board or the Board of
Supervisors’ Legislative
Research Center (https://
sfbos.org/legislative-research-
center-Irc). Agenda
information relating to this
matter will be available for
public review on Friday, May
17, 2024. For any questions
about this hearing, please
contact the Assistant Clerk for
the Budget and Finance
Committee:  Brent Jalipa
(Brent.Jalipa@sfgov.org -
(415) 554-7712) - Angela
Calvillo - Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors, City and County
of San Francisco

NOTICE OF PUBLIC
HEARING

BUDGET AND
APPROPRIATIONS
COMMITTEE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE CITY AND COUNTY
OF SAN FRANCISCO
WEDNESDAY, MAY 22, 2024
-11:30 AM
LEGISLATIVE CHAMBER,
ROOM 250, City Hall
1 DR. CARLTON B.
GOODLETT PLACE, SAN
FRANCISCO, CA 94102
NOTICE 1S HEREBY
GIVEN THAT the Board of
Supervisors of the City and
County of San Francisco’s
Budget and Appropriations
Committee will hold a public
hearing to consider the
following proposal and said
public hearing will be held
as follows, at which time
all interested parties may
attend and be heard: File No.
240456. Ordinance amending
the Administrative Code to
adjust surcharges on fees
imposed under Planning
Code, Section 350, and San
Francisco Building Code,
Section 110A, for actions
that may be appealed to the
Board of Appeals; authorizing
the Controller to make future
adjustments to ensure that the
costs of the Board of Appeals’
services are recovered
without producing revenue
which is significantly more
than such costs; and affirming
the Planning Department’s
determination  under the
California Environmental
Quality Act. If this legislation
passes, all surcharges on
fees imposed by the Planning
Department for review of
actions and permits under
Planning Code, Section 350,
and surcharges on permits
issued pursuant to San
Francisco Building Code,
Section 110A, that may be
appealed to the Board of
Appeals will increase from
$37 to $44. In accordance
with  Administrative Code,
Section 67.7-1, persons who
are unable to attend the
hearing on this matter may



ATTACHMENT B

BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF REDWOOD CITY

STAFF REPORT

DATE: MAY 8, 2024
ITEM NO: V.A
SUBMITTED BY: Rajesh Sewak, Director of Finance & Administration

TITLE: INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
REDWOOD CITY APPROPRIATING ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS
OF THE PORT OF REDWOOQOD CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2025

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Board of Port Commissioners (Board) introduce the Port of Redwood City’s (Port)
Fy2025 Budget Ordinance.

BACKGROUND

On April 26, 2024, the ad-hoc Finance Committee convened with staff on the Preliminary Port Budget for
fiscal year 2024/2025 (Fy2025). Should the Board adopt the proposed budget, a summary of the Preliminary
Port Fy2025 Budget will be transmitted to the Mayor and City Manager of Redwood City, copies of which will
also be provided to the Port Commissioners. The City of Redwood City’s (City) annual budget will include the
Port’s adopted budget.

The Ordinance appropriating anticipated revenues and funds of the Port for Fy2025 is based on the
Preliminary Fy2025 Budget and requires introduction, a future Public Hearing at a Board meeting, and final
action at a subsequent Board meeting.

ANALYSIS

The Preliminary Budget is based on an estimated 1.9 metric tons (mt) of cargo. Cargo tonnage is primarily
composed of construction sand and aggregates imported from Canada and recycled scrap metal exported
mainly to Asia.

The Preliminary Budget also reflects $10.3 million in operating revenue of which $7.7 million, or 74%, will be
generated by maritime operations. Based upon consultation with various Port tenants and other
organizations within the supply chain, staff has determined that the Fy2025 Budget reflect a fairly
conservative tonnage forecast, due to slowing in the private construction sector especially in office and retail
markets. However, public infrastructure and construction remains strong for the region.

Total operating revenue in the Preliminary Budget of $10.3 million is approximately 2% more than the
Fy2023-24 Budget. The Preliminary Budget also includes $7.5 million in operating expenses, 69% of which is
attributed to operations and 31% to administration, leaving an operating income of $2.8 million. The
operating income is further tabulated to $2.8 million net income which includes almost $1.0 million of non-
operating income, such as, grants and interest income and almost $1.0 million of non-operating expenses,
such as, interest expense on the Port’s 2012 and 2015 Revenue Bonds and subvention payment to the City.

If approved, the Fy2025 Budget will become effective July 1, 2024,

Cost Recovery N/A
Port 2020 Vision | Comports with the Port's 2020 Vision
Budget FY2025 Budget

ALTERNATIVES
N/A



ATTACHMENT B

DATE: MAY 8, 2024
ITEM NO: V.A
TITLE: INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF

REDWOOD CITY APPROPRIATING ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS
OF THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 — JUNE 30, 2025

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The action before the Board for consideration today is not subject to the CEQA review process pursuant
to Resource Code, Section 21065 and Guidelines, Section 15378.
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ATTACHMENTS

A. Fy2024-25 Preliminary Port Budget
B. Budget Ordinance
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ORDINANCE NO. P-

ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF PORT
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY APPROPRIATING
ANTICIPATED REVENUES AND OTHER GENERAL FUNDS OF THE PORT
OF REDWOOD CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2025
— PUBLIC HEARING

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF
REDWOOD CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS, an annual budget containing an estimate of the revenues and expenses of
the Port of Redwood City for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025,
has been presented to and approved by the Board of Port Commissioners of the Port of
Redwood City; and

WHEREAS, said Board desires and intends to appropriate and authorize the
expenditure of said anticipated revenues in accordance with the above-mentioned budget.

NOW THEREFORE;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PORT OF REDWOOD CITY BOARD OF PORT
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. GENERAL. The estimated revenues of the Port of Redwood City for Fiscal
Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and all unexpended and unencumbered monies remaining
in the Port funds at the close of Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024 are hereby allocated
and appropriated as hereinafter provided.

SECTION 2. OPERATING EXPENSES - OPERATIONS. The sums hereinafter specified
are hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of operating expenses in
connection with the operation of the Port of Redwood City during Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 —

June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sums for the purposes stated herein is hereby

authorized:
Line Item 1. Marine Terminal $ 2,365,189
Line Item 2. Recreational Boating $ 593,686
Line Item 3. Commercial $ 575,983
Line Item 4. Infrastructure $ 1,053,539
Line Item 5. General Maintenance $ 619,990
Total-Operations $ 5,208,387

5/22/24|Ordinance P - 10f4
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SECTION 3. OPERATING EXPENSES - ADMINISTRATION. The sums hereinafter specified

are hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of operating expenses in

connection with the administration of the Port of Redwood City during Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 -

June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sums for the purposes stated herein is hereby

authorized:
Line Item 1. Admin Salaries, Taxes & Benefits $1,368,140
Line Iltem 2. Office & Administrative Expenses $ 217,198
Line ltem 3. Professional Services $ 360,880
Line Item 4. Promotion & Marketing $ 355,000
Line ltem 5. Depreciation (Admin only) $ 18,036

Total-Administration $2,319,254

SECTION 4. SUBVENTION. The sum of Six Hundred Nineteen Thousand and Seven
Hundred Thirty Five dollars ($619,735) for voluntary Subvention to the City of Redwood City is

hereby appropriated from general Port funds (derived from sources other than State granted

lands) should the Board of Port Commissioners deem such funds as surplus and provided such

payment does not violate Revenue Bond covenants and applicable state and federal laws.

SECTION 5. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 INTEREST. For purposes of this

Ordinance, “Revenue Bonds Series 2015" refers to those bonds authorized, issued and

outstanding pursuant to Resolution No. P-2267 entitled “Resolution of the Board of Port
Commissioners of the Port Department of the City of Redwood City Authorizing the Issuance of
Revenue Bonds, Approving an Official Statement, Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a
Third Supplemental Indenture, and Escrow Deposit and Trust Agreement and a Bond Purchase

Agreement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.”

The sum of One Hundred Eighteen Thousand and Two Hundred Forty dollars
($118,240) is hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of interest on the
Revenue Bonds Series 2015 during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and the

expenditure of said sum for such purpose is hereby authorized.

SECTION 6. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015-PRINCIPAL. The sum of Four Hundred
Eighty Six Thousand and Six Hundred Sixty Seven dollars ($486,667) is hereby appropriated

from general Port funds for the payment of principal of the Revenue Bonds Series 2015 during
the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum for such purpose

is hereby authorized.

05/22//24|Ordinance P - 20of4
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SECTION 7. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012 INTEREST. For purposes of this

Ordinance, “Revenue Bonds Series 2012" refers to those bonds authorized, issued and

outstanding pursuant to Resolution No. P-2178 entitled “Resolution of the Board of Port
Commissioners of the Port Department of the City of Redwood City Authorizing the Issuance of
Revenue Bonds and the Execution and Delivery of a Second Supplemental Indenture and a

Bond Purchase Agreement and Authorizing Certain Related Matters.”

The sum of Two Hundred One Thousand and One Hundred Eighty Five dollars
($201,185) is hereby appropriated from general Port funds for the payment of interest on the
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025, and the

expenditure of said sum for such purpose is hereby authorized.

SECTION 8. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012-PRINCIPAL. The sum of Five Hundred
Forty One Thousand and One Hundred Nine dollars ($541,109) is hereby appropriated from

general Port funds for the payment of principal of the Revenue Bonds Series 2012 during the
Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum for such purpose is

hereby authorized.

SECTION 9. REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2012-RESERVES. The sum of Seven
Hundred Forty Two Thousand and Two Hundred Ninety Four dollars ($742,294) theretofore

appropriated, transferred and carried over in the Parity Bond Reserve Fund account held by the

Trustee, is hereby re-appropriated and maintained pursuant to Resolution No. P-2178 during
the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025.

SECTION 10. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. The sum of Two Million and Eight Hundred
Thousand dollars ($2,800,000) is hereby appropriated from Port Reserve Fund and Grant Fund

in connection with Capital Improvements Program for the Port of Redwood City during the Fiscal
Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and this expenditure of said sum for the purpose stated is

authorized.

SECTION 11. RESERVE FUNDING. The sum remaining in the general Port funds as of
June 30, 2024, less a prudent amount to be retained in the general Port funds, is hereby

appropriated from General Fund to Reserve Fund in connection with contingent expenditure for
the operation, administration, and/or capital improvement program of the Port of Redwood City
during the Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025, and the expenditure of said sum and for the

purpose stated is authorized.

SECTION 12. TRANSFER, ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS, CANCELLATIONS. The Board

of Port Commissioners may consent to the transfer of sums from an appropriated operating

expense line item to any other appropriated operating expense line item within each Section.

Transfers in excess of $25,000 per operating expense line item shall be by Resolution.

05/22//24|Ordinance P - 30of4
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The Board of Port Commissioners may, by Resolution, transfer appropriated sums from
one Section to another, authorize additional appropriations, and cancel previously authorized
appropriations.

SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after
its adoption and shall be operative as of July 1, 2024.

khkhkkkkkkkhkkkhkkrkd

Introduced on the 8" day of May 2024.

Passed and adopted as an Ordinance by the Board of Port Commissioners of the City of
Redwood City this day of , 2024 by the following vote:

AYES, Commissioners:
NOES, Commissioners:
ABSTAIN, Commissioners:

ABSENT, Commissioners:

PRESIDENT,

BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
Attest:

SECRETARY,
BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS

05/22//24|Ordinance P - 40f4



BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF REDWOOD CITY

<
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STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 22, 2024
ITEM NO: VILA
SUBMITTED BY: Trish Wagner, Business Development Manager

TITLE: RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOQD CITY
APPROVING STANDARD FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT - (PORTSIDE
INVESTORS - PHASE | LEASE AGREEMENT) - (JOHN DALRYMPLE, AN INDIVIDUAL)

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Board of Port Commissioners (Board) approve the standard sublease amendment.

BACKGROUND
Tenant: John Dalrymple, an individual

Premises: 414 square feet

Lease Term: April 1, 2024 — March 31, 2027

Address: 501 Seaport Court, Suite 103, Redwood City, CA 94063

Rent:
Months Rent per SF Rent
4/1/2024 - 3/31/2025 $3.20 x 414 SF $1,324.80
4/1/2025 - 3/31/2026 $3.30x 414 SF $1,366.20
4/1/2026 - 3/31/2027 $3.40 x 414 SF $1,407.60

Use: Landscape Architect

ANALYSIS

This is a standard sublease, for a Portside | tenant, which includes the following language:

Portside is located at the Port of Redwood City. The Port is a marine freight terminal and provides berths
for dry bulk, liquid bulk, and project cargoes, along with certain recreational opportunities and public
access to San Francisco Bay. As a result, tenants at Portside should be aware that the industrial activities
(including construction activities from time to time) conducted at the Port will and do create noise, odor
and dust. By executing this rental agreement, Tenant acknowledges that he/she has been made aware of
the Port activities and consequences and voluntarily executes this rental agreement.

Cost Recovery The Fivey Company paid cost recovery for this sublease approval.
Port 2020 Vision Comports with the Port’s 2020 Vision
Budget Continued revenue stream

ALTERNATIVES

If the Board chooses not to approve the sublease agreement, there may be a potential impact on Port
revenue.



DATE: May 22, 2024
ITEM NO: VI.A

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY
APPROVING STANDARD FOURTH AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT - (PORTSIDE
INVESTORS - PHASE | LEASE AGREEMENT) - (JOHN DALRYMPLE, AN INDIVIDUAL)

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The action before the Board for consideration today is not subject to the CEQA review process pursuant to
Resource Code, Section 21065 and Guidelines, Section 15378.
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Staff kExecutive Director

ATTACHMENTS
A. Cover letter from The Fivey Company, dated April 27, 2024
B. Resolution
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=FIVEY COMPANY

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT & MANAGEMENT

210 Porter Drive, Suite 220 + San Ramon, California 94583 « (925) 820-7666 + Fax (925) 820-6866

RECEIVED
MAY 13 2024

Port of Redwood City
April 27, 2024

Board of Port Commissioners
Port of Redwood City

675 Seaport Court

Redwood City, CA 94063

RE: Lease Transaction for approval by board of Port Commissioners

Please find enclosed a copy of the following document(s) for approval by
the Board of Port Commissioners

¢ Fourth Amendment to Lease, John Dalrymple, an individual dated April 3, 2024 for
space located at 501 Seaport Court, Suite 103 in approximately 414 RSF. The lease term
is for 3 years beginning at $3.20 PSF commencing April 1, 2024.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Kind Regards,

Titt Leverton

Property Manager
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RESOLUTION NO. P-

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
OF THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY APPROVING STANDARD
FOUTH AMENDMENT TO SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
(PORTSIDE INVESTORS - PHASE | LEASE AGREEMENT)
(JOHN DALRYMPLE, AN IDIVIDUAL)

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS OF THE
CITY OF REDWOOD CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 33 of that certain Lease Agreement
dated May 31, 1984 (as amended) by and between the City of Redwood City acting by
and through its Board of Port Commissioners and Portside Investors - Phase |, a
California limited partnership (“Lessee”), that certain following-named document by and
between Lessee and the following- named tenant, a copy of which agreement is on file
in the office of the Port Manager, to which copy reference is hereby made for the full
particulars thereof, is hereby approved:

Standard Fourth Amendment to Sublease Agreement
John Dalrymple, an individual
501 Seaport Court, Suite 103
Redwood City, CA 94063

Regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Port Commissioners of Redwood
City, this day of May 2024.

AYES, COMMISSIONERS:
NOES, COMMISSIONERS:

ABSENT, COMMISSIONERS:

President, Board of Port Commissioners
Attest:

Secretary, Board of Port Commissioners
May 22, 2024|Resolution P-



BOARD OF PORT COMMISSIONERS
PORT OF REDWOOD CITY

STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 22, 2024
ITEM NO: VIILA
SUBMITTED BY: Rajesh Sewak, Director of Finance and Administration

TITLE: RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (MAZE &
ASSOCIATES)
RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board of Port Commissioners (Board) receive and accept the findings of Maze &
Associates Fiscal Year 2023 (FY23) annual audited financial statements, as it relates to the Port of Redwood
City’s (Port) financial statements and data analysis and provide direction if applicable.

BACKGROUND

An independent certified public accounting firm, Maze & Associates, was engaged to audit the financial
statements of the Port for the year ending June 30, 2023, and to provide a report on internal controls over
financial reporting and compliance pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

The contract, with Maze & Associates, required that the audit be performed in accordance with U.S.
Government Auditing Standards together with Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) various
statements and issue an opinion of the Port’s financial statements. These GASB Statements establish financial
reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout the United States.

Additionally, Maze & Associates analyzed whether the Port’s financial management systems substantially
complied with the requirements of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and any reportable non-
compliance with laws and regulations it tested.

Furthermore, the audit was conducted to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
were free of misstatements or errors that included examining evidence supporting the amounts presented
in the financial statements and testing of internal controls.

In its auditor’s report of the Port’s FY23 financial statements, dated April 5, 2024, Maze & Associates
expressed an unmodified opinion or clean audit. In their opinion, the financial statements presented were in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

ANALYSIS
The Port’s net assets increased by $3,866,535 from $46,057,796 as of June 30, 2022 to $49,924,331 as of
June 30, 2023.

Cost Recovery N/A

Port 2020 Vision Comports with the Port’s 2020 Vision

Budget Annual Audit accounted for in Board Approved Budget




DATE: May 22, 2024

ITEM NO: VIILA

TITLE: RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (MAZE &
ASSOCIATES)

ALTERNATIVES

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The action before the Board for consideration today is not subject to the CEQA review process pursuant
to Resource Code, Section 21065 and Guidelines, Section 15378.
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ATTACHMENTS
A. Port of Redwood City’s Basic Financial Statements & Independent Auditor’s Report for FY2023
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PORT OF REDWOOD CITY,
REDWOOD CITY, CALIFORNIA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
AND
SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2022
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Port of Redwood City
Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and summarized comparative totals for 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS
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M"’-:s% MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Of the Port of Redwood City
Redwood City, California

Report on the Financial Statements
Qpinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the
Port of Redwood City, California (Port), a department and enterprise fund of the City of
Redwood City, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port's basic financial
statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the business-type activities of the Port as of June 30, 2023, and the
change in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Port and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirement relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Port’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Accountancy Corporation 1 625.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 + maze@mazeassoclates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 | w mazeassociates.com
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinjon is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Port’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information as
listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We previously audited Port's June 30, 2022 financial statements and expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated May 16,
2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended June 2022 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
5, 2024 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Mm A Associates

Pleasant Hill, California
April 5, 2024
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

The Port of Redwood City has issued its financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2023 in conformity with the format prescribed by the provisions of Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34). This report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
is an overview of the Port's financial activities for the fiscal year and is an integral part of the
accompanying Basic Financial Statements.

ACCOUNTING METHOD

The Port’s operations are accounted for as an Enterprise Fund. Enterprise funds are used by
municipalities to account for operations which are financed and managed similar to private
business enterprises, where the costs and expenses (including depreciation) of providing
services to the public on a continuing basis are recovered primarily through user charges. The
Port does not receive tax revenues. The Port’s revenues and expenses are recognized on a full
accrual basis; revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are
recognized in the period incurred. All assets and liabilities associated with the activity of the
enterprise are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Port is stated as a department in
the City of Redwood City’s financial statements.

THE BASIC COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Port has only one fund, therefore the Basic Financial Statements do not reflect the activities
of multiple funds. The Basic Financial Statements include the Statement of Net Position,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) and
Statement of Cash Flows. Together with this report, the Basic Financial Statements provide
information about the significant events, assumptions and decisions which resulted in the
financial performance reflected in those statements.

The Statement of Net Position provides information regarding the financial position of the Port,
including its capital assets and debts.

The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) provides
information regarding the revenues generated by each segment of the Port’s business, and the
expenses incurred in generating those revenues. The ultimate focus of the income statement is
the measurement of profitability as reflected by the amount of net income generated for the
fiscal year.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the sources and uses of the cash
which flowed into and out of the Port as a resuit of its operations and financing decisions.
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FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2023 HIGHLIGHTS

The Statement of Net Position

The port business is capital intensive; significant investment in assets is required in order to
acquire the land, and construct and maintain the necessary infrastructure and facilities. The
acquisition of assets can be funded by cash reserves, debt, or donated capital including grants.

In general, debt can be incurred in the form of notes payable and/or bonds payable.

A

condensed version of the Statement of Net Position is presented in Table A below, which
reflects the capital intensity of the Port’s business and the changes which occurred between
Fiscal Years 2023, 2022, and 2021.

Table A
FY23 vs. FY22 FY22 vs. FY21
Fy23 FY22 Change FY21 Change
Assets
Current Assets $ 25322002 $ 21,890,109 $ 3431,893 § 2129761 § (239,652)
Noncurrent Asset 1,135,800 1,103,140 32,660 1,102,863 277
Capital Assets, Net 38,058,470 37,644,970 413,500 36,634,942 1,010,028
All Othes Assets 14,431,953 15,409,542 (977,589) 419,387 14,990,155
Total Assets 78948205 "76,64'7‘7] 1 2,900,464 60,286,953 15,760,808
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Loss on Bond Refunding 125,053 142,909 (17,856) 160,765 (17,856)
Pension Related 1,095,897 535,977 559,920 391,333 144,644
Pension Contributions - 4,259 (4,259) 73,354 (69,095)
OPEB Related 64,060 169,409 (105,349) 108,760 60,649
Total Deferred Outflows 1,285,010 852,554 432,456 /34,212 118,342
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 4,346,940 3,073,905 1,273,035 2,502,660 571,245
Non-current Liabilities 12,322,701 12,101,972 220,729 14,118,728 2,016,756
Total Liabilities 16,060,041 15175877 T453,764 16,621,388 1,405,
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Leases Related (Note 11) 13,430,738 14,731,729 (1,300,991) . -
OPEB Related 150,688 80,180 70,508 113,082 (32,902)
Pension Related 57,837 854,733 796,896 9,682 845,051
Total Deferred Inflows 13,639,263 934,913 027 37 122,768 812,149
Net Position
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 29,964,279 31,737,033 (1,772,754 30,279,206 1,457,827
Restricted for Bebt Service 993,595 957,585 36,010 922,155 35,430
Unrestricted 18,966,457 13,363,178 5,603,279 13,075,652 % 287,526
Total Net Position % 49,924,331 $ 46,057,796 $ 3,866,535 $ 44,277,013 $ 1,780,783

The increase in Net Position between June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 is due to the profitable
operation of the Port for the fiscal year July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.

The $3,866,535 increase in FY23 Total Net Position is comprised of:

$ 4,462,986

< 596,451> - Less subvention to the City of Redwood City.

- Net income for the year
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FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2023 HIGHLIGHTS, CONTINUED

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position

The Port's business is comprised of three major segments:

o Maritime — activities related to the import and export of waterborne cargos.

o Recreational Boating — activities related to the operation of a public marina, boat launch
facility and dry boat storage facility.

o Commercial — activities related to the leasing of land and buildings not directly
associated with Maritime activities.

TEN YEAR TONNAGE HISTORY
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In Fiscal Year 2023 (FY23) the Port's tonnage was 1,825,886 metric tons, 2% up from
1,790,396 metric tons in FY22.




ATTACHMENT A

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2023 HIGHLIGHTS, CONTINUED
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position (continued)

The Port's Income Statement segregates the revenues and expenses of each of its three major
business segments, as well as expenses related to the operation and maintenance of the Port's
infrastructure and its administration. Table B, below, is a condensed version of the Income
Statement; it summarizes the Port's revenue and expense, splits out other non-operating
revenue/(expense) into its component parts, and compares results for Fiscal Years 2023, 2022
and 2021.

Table B
FY23 vs. FY22 FY22 vs. FY21
FY23 FY22 Change FY21 Change

Revenue
Operating Revenue 4 10,060,890 $ 9,660,823 § 400067 $ 9,023,602 $ 637,221
Interest Income 507,070 75,461 431,609 105,795 (30,334)
Other Non-Operating Income 55,138 50,000 5,138 33,509 16,491

Total Revenue 10,623,098 9,786,284 836,814 9,162,906 623,378
Expense
Operations 3,919,843 5,137,329 (1,217,486) 3,843,241 1,294,088
Administration 2,296,844 1,607,375 689,469 1,701,357 (93,982)

Operating Expense 6,216,687 6,744,704 (528,017) 5,544,508 1,200,106
Interest Expense 411,435 445,619 (34,184) 478,036 (32,417)
Other Non-Operating Expense _ 256,302 251,165 5,137 206,201 44,964

Total Expense 6,884,424 7,441,488 (557,064) 6,228,835 1,212,653
Excess (Deficlency) before

Contributions, Special &

Extraordinary ltems & Transfers 4,462,986 2,344,796 1,393,878 2,934,071 (589,275)
Transfers (Subvention) (596,451) (564,013) (32,438) (541,416) (22,597)

Net Income $ 3866535 4 1780783 _$ 1361440 2 2!392!655 $ (611,872)

Port’s operating revenue for Fiscal Year 2023 increased by 4% or $400,000 compared to Fiscal
Year 2022, and that was mainly because of new leases/tenants.

The Charter of the City of Redwood City requires that the Port annually give to the City any
surplus funds which in the judgment of the Board of Port Commissioners is not needed for Port
purposes. This is called subvention; for Fiscal Year 2023 the Port will pay subvention of
$596,451 to the City.
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FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2023 HIGHLIGHTS, CONTINUED

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2023 the Port had $67,347,589 in capital assets and $29,289,119 accumulated
depreciation, resulting in net capital assets of $38,058,470. A summary of the activity and
balances in capital assets is presented in Table C below.

Table C
Additions Deletions

June 30, 2022 & Transfers & Transfers June 30, 2023

Land and Land Improvements $ 2,574,066 $ = $ = $ 2,574,066
Infrastructure 4,773,955 29,500 & 4,803,455
Recreational Boating Facilities 7,651,285 - - 7,651,285
Terminal & Facilities 40,102,513 44,942 - 40,147,455
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 743,051 75,500 - 818,551
Channel and Maritime Harbor 4,319,084 - < 4,319,084
Construction in Progress 5,474,210 1,559,483 - 7,033,693
Total Capital Assets $ 65,638,164 $ 1,709,425 $ - $ 67,347,589
Accumulated Depreciation (27,993,194) (1,295,925) - (29,289,119)
Capital Assets, Net $ 37,644,970 $ 413,500 $ - ¢ 38,058,470

At June 30, 2023, of the $7,033,693 balance in Construction in Progress $2,322,289 pertains to
the Channel Deepening Feasibility Study, $2,041,628 Fishing Pier, $1,382,499 Emergency
Operations Center (EOC), $424,196 Improvement to Rail Spur, $398,578 9-Acre Parcel
Development and the remaining $464,503 to the other capital projects underway including
Marina Improvements, Ferry Transit project.

Debt Administration
At June 30, 2023, the Port had the following debt obligations:

2012 Port Revenue Bonds — The bonds were issued on June 26, 2012, in the
principal amount of $10,000,000 to partially fund the replacement of Wharves 1 & 2.
The remaining principal balance at June 30, 2023 was $5,554,986. The interest rate is
fixed at 4.20% throughout the 20 year term; principal and interest payments are due
monthly through June 1, 2032.

2015 Port Revenue Bonds — The bonds were issued on June 1, 2015, in the
principal amount of $6,940,000 to refund the Revenue Bonds Series 1999. The
remaining principal balance at June 30, 2023 was $3,635,000. The bonds bear an
interest rate between 2.00% and 4.00% and are fully amortized. Principal and interest
are payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year throughout the 15 year term. The
bonds are secured by and payable from the revenues generated by the Port’s
operations.
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND MAJOR INITIATIVES

The Port’s inbound cargos are concentrated in bulk construction materials; export cargo
currently includes ferrous scrap metal destined for recycling in Asia. The Port’s Fiscal Year 2024
(FY2023-24) budget for import and export tonnage was based on the expectations of its key
customers with regard to their particular markets. At 1.910 million metric tons, the FY2023-24
tonnage budget is almost 5% higher than FY2022-23 Actual tonnage.

GOALSFY 2023-24

In light of the worldwide impacts associated with COVID-19, the Port has been active behind
the scenes planning for a post-pandemic future. While we have continued to see cargo
operations fueling our region's essential construction activities, the Port, has been diligently
working to welcome our residents back to the shores by preparing for when our community can
safely return to recreational uses.

The Port's overarching Goals for FY 2023-24 include:

 Identify new master developer to activate and redevelop our marina waterfront with
more destination type uses and increase Port revenue.

« Implement new real estate leasing policy to guide future lease negotiations (capital
investment for term).

e Procure PSGP equipment for jetdock, upgraded cyber security, fencing, and other
federal MARSEC improvements ($3M)

« Sponsor U.S. Army Corps of Engineers channel maintenance dredging project of $8M
appropriated in federal funding (PBUD).

« Improve Green Marine program; implement “pilot” projects which may include agua
culture, resiliency efforts, blue economy/technology.

« Continue efforts to advance the 101/84 interchange and identify funding opportunities
through both state and federal sources.

» Maintain and grow existing cargo tonnage as part of post-pandemic economic recovery.

« Perform berth dredging for improved cargo operations $2M.

. Continue public waterfront activation events in partnership with the City of Redwood
City and launch new community event permitting, tours, gathering spaces, and
programs on Port waterfront.

« Host annual public safety emergency drill and exercise with the City of Redwood City
and other regional first responder agencies.

CONTACTING THE PORT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Basic Component Unit Financial Statements combined with this report, Management's
Discussion and Analysis, are intended to provide citizens, investors and creditors insight into the
Port’s operation and finances. Questions regarding this report should be directed to:

Port of Redwood City
Director of Finance & Administration
675 Seaport Boulevard, Redwood City, California 94063
Telephone: (650)306-4150 Facsimile: (650)369-7636 Email: portofrc@redwoodcityport.com
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Port of Redwood City
Comparative Statements of Net Position
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments (Note 2) $ 23,493550 § 20,035,891
Accounts receivables 1,342,513 1,334,315
Prepaid items 485,939 515,903
Total current assets 25,322,002 21.890,109
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments (Note 2) 1,135,800 1,103,140
Silicon Valley Clean Water capacity rights (Note 4) 400,000 400,000
Prepaid bond insurance 15,043 17,215
Leases receivable (Note 11) 14,016,910 14,992,327
Capital assets (Note 3):
Non-depreciable assets 9,553,757 7,994,274
Depreciable assets, net 28,504,713 29,650,696
Total capital assets, net 38,058,470 37,644,970
Total noncurrcnt assets 53,626,223 54,157,652
Total assets 78,948,225 76,047,761
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow of resources - loss on bond refunding 125,053 142,909
Deferred outflows of resources - Pension contributions (Note 7) - 535,977
Deferred outflow of resources - Pension related (Note 7) 1,095,897 4,259
Deferred outflow of resources - OPEB related (Note 8) 64,060 169,409
Total deferred outflow of resources 1,285,010 852,554
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 813,352 367,084
Accrued payroll and benefits payable (Note 1F) 228,732 220,477
Unearned revenue 175,431 175,431
Refundable deposits 943,863 754,968
[nterest payable 31,503 34,347
Subvention payable (Note 6) 1,160,464 564,013
Long-term debt - due within one year (Note 5) 993,595 957,585
Total current liabilities 4,346,940 3,073,905
Long-term liabilities:
Net OPEB liabilities (Note 8) 645,633 849,375
Net pension liabilities (Note 7) 3,491,050 2,074,336
Long-term debt - due in more than one year (Note 5) 8,186,018 9,178,261
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,322,701 12,101,972
Total liabilities 16,669,641 15,175,877
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow of resources - Leases related (Note 11) 13,430,738 14,731,729
Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB related (Note 8) 150,688 80,180
Deferred inflow of resources - pension related (Note 7) 57,837 854,733
Total Deferred inflow of resources 13,639,263 15,666,642
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 29,964,279 31,737,033
Restricted for Debt service 993,595 957,585
Unrestricted 18,966.457 13,363,178
Total net position $ 49,924,331 S 46,057,796

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements,
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Port of Redwood City

Comparative Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

OPERATING REVENUES:

Marine terminal:
Rentals-maritime
Wharfage
Dockage
Facilities usage
Line handling

Services and miscellaneous
Total marine terminal

Rentals - commercial
Recreational boating
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Marine terminal

Recreational boating

Commercial

Infrastructure

Administration and general maintenance

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

Interest income
Interest expense
Grant income

Other income (expense), net

Total nonoperating expenses

Change in net positions before subvention to the City of Redwood City
Subvention to City of Redwood City (Note 6)

Change in net positions

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year

End of year

2023 2022
2,527,440 2,703,061
2,479,566 2,497,396

826,957 719,390
578,805 382,542
758,834 627,052
64,941 34,552
7,236,543 6,963,993
2,192,008 2,075,957
512,224 504,211
120,115 116,662
10,060,890 9,660,823
2,061,980 3,352,446
662,730 611,122
399,690 379,236
795,443 794,525
2,296,844 1,607,375
6,216,687 6,744,704
3,844,203 2,916,119
507,070 75,461
(411,435) (445,619)
743,192 292,048
(220,044) (493,213)
618,783 (571,323)
4,462,986 2,344,796
(596,451) (564,013)
3,866,535 1,780,783
46,057,796 44,277,013
49,924,331 46,057,796

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Port of Redwood City
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers and other funds
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Cash payments of subvention to the City of Redwood City
Other nonoperating revenues (disbursements)

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal payments on debt

[nterest paid on debt

Lease receipls

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
[nterest received on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of ycar
End of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

(loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

(Increase) decrease in assets :
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow of resources:

Deferred outflow of resources - OPEB employer contributions
Deferred outflows of resources - pension
Deferred outflow of resources - pension employer contributions

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Refundable deposits
Net OPEB Liability
Net pension liability

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow of resources:
Deferred inflow of resources -Leases related amounts
Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB related amounts
Deferred inflow of resources - pension related amounts

Net cash provided by operating activities

2023 2022
$ 8,751,701 $8,544,262
(1,954,791) (3.457,137)
(2.252317) (1.926.136)
4,544,593 3,160,389
- (541,416)
523,148 (201,165)
523,148 (742,581)
(956,233) (920,655)
(394,251) (428,177)
975,417
(1,709,425) (2,324,607)
(2,084,492) (3.673.439)
507,070 75461
507,070 75,461
3,490,319 (1,180,170)
21,139,031 22,319,201
s 24,629,350 $21.139.031
$ 3,844203 § 2,916,119
1,295,925 1,314,579
(8.,198) (855,963)
33,964 (84,832)
105,349 (60,649)
535,977 (144,644)
(1,091,638) 69,095
446,268 12,563
8,255 65,959
188,895 437,282
(203,742) 158,131
1,416,714 (1,218,802)
(1,300,991) (260,598)
70,508 (32,902)
(796.896) 845,051

S 454503 S 3,160,389

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Port of Redwood City (Port) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the Port's accounting policies are described
below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Port was established under the City of Redwood City’s (City) Charter as a
department of the City and is managed by the Board of Port Commissioners, whose five
members are appointed by the City Council. The Port’s financial statements are included
in the basic financial statements of the City.

The Port is one of California’s most diversified small ports. In addition to handling bulk
and recycled materials, other uses include warehouse and office leasing, recreational
boating facilities and a 190-slip marina.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The Port is an enterprise fund which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of the fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses. The basic financial
statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Activities and Changes in
Net Position and a Statement of Cash Flows.

These financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the
period in which the liability is incurred. The accompanying Statement of Activities and
Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total
net position. All of the Port’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The net position
total reflected on both the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position and the
Statement of Net Position represents equity.

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Port considered all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

15
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Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments with
maturities of one year or less at time of purchase may be stated at amortized cost; all other
investments should be stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for those
securities for which market quotations are readily available. The Port has elected to state
all investments at fair value.

The Port participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California, the Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit
risk. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities are subject to change
in interest rate risk.

D. Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical
cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market
value on the date donated. Port policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting
capital assets at $500. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land improvements 30-50 years
Infrastructure 30-50 years
Recreational boating facilities 30-50 years
Terminal and facilities 30-50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-25 years
Channel and maritime harbor 30-50 years

E. Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position — This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount includes all net positions that do not meet the
definition of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.”



ATTACHMENT A

Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
F. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences including accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and other
employee benefits are accounted for as expenses in the year earned.

Vacation leave is earned by employees at the rate of ten days per year up to five years of
service, fifteen days up to fourteen years of service, and twenty days thereafter. The
maximum accrual permitted for any employee is two years earned vacation leave.

Sick leave is earned at a rate of eight hours per month. Unused sick leave may be
accumulated up to a maximum of 120 working days (960) hours. Annually, employees
may convert up to 96 hours of sick leave into compensation at 25% of their rate of pay.
Employees leaving the service of the Port receive compensation in the amount of 25% of
all unused accumulated sick leave.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

H. New Pronouncements

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were
effective in the fiscal year 2023:

GASB Statement No. 91 - In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt
Obligations. The objectives of this Statement is to provide a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with
commitments extended by issuers, arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and related note disclosures by clarifying the existing definition of a
conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of
the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional
commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2021 or FY 2022/2023. There was no impact on fund balance or net
position.
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Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
H. New Pronouncements, Continued

GASB Statement No. 94 - In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private
and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objectives
of this Statement improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-
private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 or FY
2022/2023. There was no impact on fund balance or net position.

GASB Statement No. 96 - In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. The objectives of this Statement is to
provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results
in a right-to-use subscription asset — an intangible asset — and a corresponding
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires
note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 or FY 2022/2023. There was no
material impact on fund balance or net position.

1. Budget and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). Prior to June 30 the proposed budget is submitted to the Port Commission for
approval and the budget ordinance is introduced. Public hearings are conducted to
obtain public comments. At a subsequent regularly scheduled commission meeting, the
budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance, normally before July 1¢. After
adoption, the budget is submitted to the City Council, City Clerk, City Manager and
Assistant City Manager - Administrative Services of the City of Redwood City. The
Commission is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any
department and can revise amounts which will alter total expenditures by the Port.

J. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
K. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Port’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from
the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Generally accepted
accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes
are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position (balance sheet) will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net positon (balance sheet) will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

M. Leases

Under Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, a lease is
defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial
asset (the underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange
or exchange-like transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land,
vehicles, and equipment. Port recognizes lease receivables or liabilities with an initial,
individual total present value of $300,000 or more, based on the future lease payments
remaining at the start of the lease.

Port reviews and analyzes leases, and when appropriate, would recognize certain lease

assets and labilities as inflows of resources and outflow of resources, based on the
payment provision and remaining duration of the contract.
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Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
N. Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs)

As clarified by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 96,
the Port initially measures the subscription liability at the present value of payments
expected to be made during the contract term. Subsequently, the subscription liability is
reduced by the principal portion of payments made. The subscription asset is initially
measured as the initial amount of the subscription liability, adjusted for payments made
at or before the SBITA commencement date, plus certain initial direct costs.
Subsequently, the subscription asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying IT assets. The Port recognizes
SBITA liabilities with an initial, individual value of $300,000 based on the future SBITA
payments remaining at the start of the contract.

The Port monitors changes in citcumstances that would require a remeasurement of its
subscription and will remeasure the subscription asset and liability if certain changes
occur that are expected to affect the amount of the subscription liability significantly.

The Port has no SBITA subject to GASB#96 as of June 30, 2023.

0. Summarized Comparative Information
The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be

read in conjunction with the Port’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,
from which the summarized information was derived.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

Deposits and investments held by the Port at June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized
below:

Fair Value
Cash and Investments: 2023 2022
Demand Deposits:
Deposits $ 1,297,693 $ 1,088,401
Petty cash 1,000 1,000
Investments:
Local Agency Investment Fund 22,194,857 18,946,490
Total unrestricted cash and investments 23,493,550 20,035,891
Restricted Cash and Investments:
Cash held in escrow (Mitigation account) 175,431 175,430
Held by fiscal agent * 960,369 927,710
Total restricted cash and investments 1,135,800 1,103,140
Total unrestricted and restricted cash and investments $ 24,629,350 $ 21,139,031

*Trustee accounts with U.S. Bank invested in Government obligation funds and US treasury money market.

B. Cash Deposits

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of the Port’s cash deposits were
$1,297,693 and $1,088,401 respectively; bank balances before reconciling items were
$1,597,256 and $1,445,652 respectively, of which $250,000 was fully insured and $1,347,256
and $1,195,652 respectively were collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institutions in the Port's name as discussed below. The Port has waived
collateral requirements for the portion of cash deposits that are fully insured up to
$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan
associations to secure the Port's deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code
states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security
interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for
deposits is considered to be held in the Port's name. The market value of pledged
securities must equal at least 110% of the Port’s deposits. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure Port deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150% of the Port’s deposits.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

B. Cash Deposits, Continued

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port had $1,135,000 and $1,103,140 respectively in total
restricted cash and investments. The investment held by fiscal agents invested in
Government obligation funds and US treasury money market funds pledged for the
payment of certain bonds as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $960,369 and $927,709
respectively; the amount held in escrow and by fiscal agents pledged for future asset
acquisitions was $175,431 and $175,431 respectively. The California Government Code
requires these funds to be invested in accordance with any applicable Port ordinance,
resolution or bond indenture, unless there are specific State statutes governing their
investment. These funds have been invested only as permitted by the Investment Policy.

C. Investments
The Port follows the City’s investment policy. Under the provisions of the City’s

investment policy, and in accordance with California Government Code, the following
investments are authorized:

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One [ssuer
United States Treasury Obligations 5 years No limit No limit
Federal Agency/Government Sponsored Enterprises N/A No limit No limit
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A No limit $75 Million
San Mateo County Fool N/A No limit $75 Million
State and Local Agency Bonds N/A 20% 5%
Money Market and Mutual Funds N/A 20% 5%
Local Government Investment Pools N/A 20% No limit
U.S. Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% 5%
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3 years 10% 2%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit N/A 30% 5%
Prime Commercial Paper 270 days 40% 5%
Bankers’ Acceptances 180 days 10% 2%
Repurchase Agreements 90 days 10% 2%
Asset-backed Securities 5 years 20% 5%
Supranational Securities 5 years 30% 5%
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
D. Risk Disclosures

GASB Statement No. 40 requires that risks related to deposits and investments be
disclosed.

Credit Risk - the risk of loss of value of an investment due to a downgrade of its rating or
the failure or impairment of its issuer. In order to limit loss exposure due to Credit Risk, the
investment policy limits purchases of investments to those rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s
or P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service.

Credit % of
Investment Type Rating Investments
California Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated 100%

Custodial Credit Risk - the risk of loss of an investment due to failure, impairment or
malfeasance of the third party in whose name the investment is held and/or who has
physical possession of the investment instrument. In order to limit loss exposure due to
Custodial Credit Risk, the investment policy requires all securities be received and
delivered using the standard delivery versus payment (DVP) procedure, and all securities
(excluding certificates of deposit) be held by a third-party bank or trust department under
the terms of a custody or trustee agreement.

E. External Investment Pool

The Port invests in LAIF, a State of California external investment pool. LAIF determines
the fair value of its investment portfolio based on market quotations for those securities
where market quotations are readily available, and based on amortized cost or best
estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.

The Port valued its investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2023, by multiplying its account
balance with LAIF times a fair value factor computed by LAIF. As of June 30, 2023, the
Port had $22,536,774 in LAIF with fair value factor of .984828499. As of June 30, 2022 the
Port had $19,193,600 in LAIF with fair value factor of .987125414 The fair value factor was
determined by dividing all LAIF participants’ total aggregate amortized cost by total
aggregate fair value. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port’s investments in
LAIF stated at fair value equaled $22,194,857 and $18,946,490 respectively. At June 30,
2023 these investments matured in an average of 260 days.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, investments were stated at fair value using
the aggregate method. The unrealized gains (losses) due to fair value adjustments were
($341,917) and $($247,110), for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

E. External Investment Pool, Continued

The Port’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2023, include a portion of the pool funds
invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments may
include the following:

o  Structured Notes are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose
cash-flow characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity)
depend on one or more indices and/or that have embedded forwards or options.

o Asset-backed Securities, the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle
their purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as
principal and interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (such as
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port had $22,194,857 and $18,946,490 respectively (stated
at fair value) invested in LAIF, which had invested 1.46% and 1.14% of the pool
investment fund in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities.

F. Investment Valuation

Investments (except for money market accounts, time deposits, and commercial paper) are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those
that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in
the statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements
are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Investments in LAIF and restricted cash and investmenis included money market
accounts and guaranteed investment contracts are not subject to fair value measurement.
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the Port’s capital assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2023:

Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Land improvements
Infrastructure
Recreational boating facilities
Terminal and facilities
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Channel and maritime harbor

Total depreciable assets

Accumulated Depreciation:
Land improvements
Infrastructure
Recreational boating facilities
Terminal and facilities
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment
Channel and maritime harbor

Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net

Capital assets, net

2022 2023
Balance Additions Bualance Balance
June 30, 2021 & Transfers June 30, 2022 Additions June 30, 2023
E) 2,520,064 - s 2,520,064 - $ 2,520,064
3,149,603 S 2,324,607 5,474,210 S 1,559,483 7,033,693
5,669,667 2,324,607 7,994,274 1,559,483 9,553,757

54,002 54,002 - 54,002
4,773,955 . 4,773,955 29,500 4,803,455
7,651,285 - 7,651,285 - 7,651,285
40,102,513 - 40,102,513 44,942 40,147,455
743,051 743,051 75,500 818,551
4,319,084 4,319,084 . 4,319,084
57,643,890 0 57,642,890 149,942 57,793,832
(50,334) (799) (51,133) (799) (51,932)
(3,721,464) (68,095) (3,789,559) (62,456) (3,852,015)
(4,859,345) (222,379) (5,081,724) (209,283) (3,291,007)
(13,994,467) (959,642) (14,954,109) (956,691) (15,910,800)
(407,055) (27,080) (434,135) (30,112) (464,247)
(3,645,950) (36,584) (3,682,534} (36,584) (3,719,118)
(26,678,615) (1,314,579) (27,993,194) (1,295,925) (29,289,119)
30,965,275 (1,314,579) 29,650,696 (1,145,983) 28,504,713

& 36,634,942 3 1,010,028 S 37,644,970 $ 413,500 $ 38.058.470

Depreciation expense for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

Marine terminal

Infrasiructure and general maintenance

Recreational boating

Commercial
Administration

Total

June 30
2023 2022

$ 697,799 $ 699,744
347,792 351,404

188,020 201,117

38,824 38,824

23,490 23,490

5 1,295,925 $ 1,314,579
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4. SILICON VALLEY CLEAN WATER (SVCW) CAPACITY RIGHTS

The Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) was established to build and operate a sewage
treatment facility. SVCW is controlled by a four member board, which appoints
management and employees of SVCW and is responsible for SVCW’s budget, operations
and finances.

The Port's acquisition of capacity rights allows the Port and its tenants to discharge 400,000
gallons per day of wastewater to SVCW's treatment facility. The Port is carrying the
capacity rights at the original acquisition cost of $1.00 per gallon for a total amount of
$400,000.

Financial statements may be obtained from SVCW at 1400 Radio Road, Redwood City,
California 94065.

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2023 are as follows:

Balance Balance Balance Due Within Due in More
June 30,2021  Relirements  June 30, 2022 Retirements  June 30, 2023 One Year Than One Year

2012 Revenue Bonds $ 6529874 §$ (477155 $ 6052719 § (497733) § 5354986 5 518595 $ 5,036,391
2015 Revenue Bonds 4,540,000 (445,000) 4,095,000 (460,000) 3,635,000 475,000 3,160,000
Unamortized Bond Discount (13,373) 1,500 {11,873) 1,500 (10,373) - (10,373)

Tota! long-term debt $ 11056501 $ (920655 § 10135846 $  (956233) $ 9179613 S 993,595 % 8,186,018

Port of Redwood City Revenue Bonds Series 2012

On June 1, 2012, the Port issued Port of Redwood City Revenue Bonds Series 2012 to
finance the redevelopment of Wharves 1 & 2. The original principal amount of the bonds
was $10,000,000; there was no original issue discount. The bonds bear an interest rate of
4.20% and are fully amortized. Principal and interest are payable on the first of each month
throughout the 20-year term. The bonds are secured by and payable from the revenues
generated by the Port’s operations.

The Revenue Bonds are general obligations of the Port, payable solely from operating
revenues. The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the
City to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if any of the
following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure of the City to
observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt; bankruptcy
filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control
of the City. No such events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

At June 30, 2023, future debt service requirements for the 2012 revenue bonds were as
follows:

For the Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 518,595 $ 223,403 $ 741,998
2025 541,109 201,185 742,294
2026 564,278 178,015 742,293
2027 588,440 153,854 742,294
2028 613,635 128,658 742,293
2029-2032 2,728,929 240,394 2,969,323
Total $ 5,554,986  $ 1,125509 % 6,680,495

Port of Redwood City Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2015

On June 1, 2015, the Port issued Port of Redwood City Refunding Revenue Bonds Series
2015 to refund the Revenue Bonds Series 1999. The original principal amount of the
bonds was $6,940,000; there was an original issue discount of $22,375. The bonds bear an
interest rate between 2.00% to 4.00% and are fully amortized. Principal and interest are
payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year throughout the 15 year term. The bonds are
secured by and payable from the revenues generated by the Port’s operations.

The Revenue Bonds are general obligations of the Port, payable solely from operating
revenues. The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the
City to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if any of the
following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure of the City to
observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement terms of the debt; bankruptcy
filing by the City; or if any court or competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control
of the City. No such events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

At June 30, 2023, future debt service requirements for the 2015 revenue bonds were as
follows:

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 475,000 $ 134,388 $ 609,388
2025 485,000 119,544 604,544
2026 505,000 103,175 608,175
2027 520,000 85,500 605,500
2028 545,000 66,000 611,000
2029-2032 1,105,000 65,300 1,170,800
Total $ 3,635,000 $ 574,407 $ 4,209,407
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

Debt Covenants and Restrictions

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Port complied with all general and specific
covenants of the master bond indenture and the first and supplemental bond indentures,
including debt proceeds usage, debt repayment, and maintenance of adequate reserves.

6. SUBVENTION PAYMENTS TO THE CITY OF REDWOOD CITY

In accordance with Section 48d of the Charter of the City, the Board of the Port
Commissioners is required to annually pay to the City profits from the operation of the
Port and any surplus funds which in its judgment may not be needed for Port purposes.
Subventions payable to the City for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were $596,451 and $564,013,
respectively.

7. PENSION PLANS

A. California Public Employees Retirement Plan

Plan Description - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the Port's Miscellaneous Plan, agent multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its
participating member employers. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statute and City of Redwood City and Port of Redwood City ordinances. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the
CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public
employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one
year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following:
the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments for the plan is applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.
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7. PENSION PLANS, Continued
A. California Public Employees Retirement Plan, Continued

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

*From 6.30.20 Valuation Tier1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Prior to On or after On or after
Hire date October 13, 2011 October 13, 2011 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @55 2% @60 2% @62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly forlife  monthly for life
Retirement age 55 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible
compensation 20% t02.7% 1.092% t0 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates* 8.00% 7.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates* 10.94%
Required payment for Unfunded Accrued
Liability* $0

Employees Covered - At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms for the Plan:

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 6 6
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0 0
Active employees 11 12
Total 17 18

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on
an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a
change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Port is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of employees.
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7. PENSION PLANS, Continued
A. California Public Employees Retirement Plan, Continued

Net Pension Liability - The Port's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total
pension liability, less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of
the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022 and 2023, using an annual actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively, rolled forward to June 30, 2022 and 2021 using standard
update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine
the net pension liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 and 2021

actuarial reports was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90% 7.15%
Inflation 2.30% 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return
6.90%, Net of pension plan investment  7.25%, Net of pension plan investment
expenses, including inflation expenses, including inflation
Mortality (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Derived using CalPERS' Membership
data for all funds data for all funds
Post Retirement Benefit The lesser of contract COLA up to Contract COLA up to 2.50% until
Increase 2.30% until Purchasing Power Purchasing Power Protection

Protection Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power applies 2.30%,
thereafter

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power
applies 2.50%, thereafter

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality
are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 2001 to 2019. The table includes
generational mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP-2020 published by the Society of Actuaries.
For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial
Assumptions report from November 2021 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in
the June 30, 2022, and 2021 valuation were based on the results of November 2021 an
actuarial experience study for the period 2001 to 2019. Further details of the Experience
Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of Assumptions -For the measurement date of June 30, 2022 the discount rate
changed from 7.15% for June 30, 2021 to 6.90%

30



ATTACHMENT A

Port of Redwood City
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

7. PENSION PLANS, Continued
A. California Public Employees Retirement Plan, Continued

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%
for the Plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2022, and 7.15% for the
measurement period ending June 80,2021. To determine whether the municipal bond
rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress
tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans
ran out of assets. Therefore, the 6.90 percent discount rate was adequate and the use
of the municipal bond rate calculation was not necessary. The long term expected
discount rates of 7.15 percent was applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be
obtained from the CalPERS website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all the
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
next 20 years using a building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then
adjusted for assumed administrative expenses of 10 basis points.
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7. PENSION PLANS, Continued
A. California Public Employees Retirement Plan, Continued

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate
of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the
discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative
expenses.

Assumed
asset 1, (2
Asset Class allocation Real Return
Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High Yield 5.00% 227%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.00% 357%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage -5.00% -0.59%
Total 100.00%

(2) An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
(b) Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management Study.
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7. PENSION PLANS, Continued
B. Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The changes in the Net Pension Liability for the Plan for the measurement period ended
June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability / (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 10,102,692 § 80283356 § 2,074,336
Changes in the year:
Service cost 213,342 - 213,342
Interest on the total pension liability 781,642 - 781,642
Differences between actual and expected experience (89,969) - (89,969)
Changes in assumptions 341,618 - 341,618
Change in proportion - - -
Changes in benefit terms - - -
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement - - -
Contribution - employer - 440,355 (440,355)
Contribution - employees - 93,488 (93,488)
Net investment income - (698,217) 698,217
Administrative expenses - {(5,707) 5,707
Benefit payments , including refunds of employee
contributions (531,580) (531,580) -
Other Miscellaneous Income/ (Expense) - -
Net changes during 2022-23 715,053 (701,661) 1416,714
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 10,817,745 $ 7,326,695 § 3,491,050

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The
following presents the net pension liability of the Port for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Port’s net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

Measurement Date June 30, 2023 2022

1% Decrease 5.90% 6.15%
Net Pension Liability 5,080,630 $ 3,523,871
Current Discount Rate 6.90% 715%
Net Pension Liability % 3491050 % 2,074,336
1% Increase 7.90% 815%
Net Pension Liability % 2,177,914 $ 872,620

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
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7. PENSION PLANS, Continued

C. Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port recognized pension expense of
$1,155,795 and $449,300 respectively. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 1,091,638 S - 3 535977 %
Differences between actual and expected
experience 4,259 (57,837) 4,259 (3.987)
Changes in assumptions - - - -
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments - - - (850,746)
Total $ 1,095,897 $ 57,837y $ 540236 $ (854,733)

$1,091,638 reported as deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2023 related to
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2023, and $535978 reported as
deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2022 related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date was recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense
as follows:

Fiscal Year
ended June 30: Annual Amortization
2024 % 160,324
2025 133,921
2026 31,807
2027 265,892
2027 -
Total ] 591,944

D. Payable to the Pension Plan

The Port had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan for both the
years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
A. Plan Description

The Cost-sharing Multiple Employer Other Post-employment Benefits Plan offered by the
Port are limited to reimbursement of medical premiums only. Eligibility extends to those
employees hired before January 1, 2011, who, prior to retirement, have (a) worked ten or
more consecutive years at the Port on a full time basis, and (b) are enrolled in the Port’s
medical plan, and (c) are age 55 or older, and (d) have not been voluntarily or
involuntarily terminated from employment at the Port. Spouses and/or dependents are
ineligible.

The reimbursement of medical premiums is limited to the lesser of (a) the medical
insurance premium paid by the eligible retiree, or (b) the Port’s cost to provide medical
coverage for an active employee of the same age as the retiree or (c) the insurance
premium for a Medicare supplement plan at the retiree’s earliest Medicare eligibility age,
whether or not the retiree enrolls in Medicare.

The accounting rules governing other post-employment benefits (OPEB) do not require
mandatory funding of the actuarial accrued liability or actuarial required contribution.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Port adopted a comprehensive funding
policy for post-employment benefits other than pension. The policy addresses the
selection of a Section 115 Trust, prefunding strategy, disbursements and administrative
matters. The Section 115 Trust selected was the CalPERS California Employer’s Retiree
Benefit Trust Program (“CERBT”).

B. Employees Covered

As of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees
were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan:

Active employees
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits

C. Contributions

The OPEB Plan and its contribution requirements are established by Memoranda of
Understanding with the applicable employee bargaining units and may be amended by
agreements between the Authority and the bargaining units. The annual contribution is
based on the actuarially determined contribution. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023,
the Port contributed $31,178 for the current retirees.
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued
D. Actuarial Assumption

The Port's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation dated June 30, 2021 and 2021, respectively, based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumption

Discount Rate Based on the Fidelity General Obligation AA Index
Inflation 2.75% as of June 30, 2021

Salary Increases 3.0% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 3.69%

Medical premiums assumed to increase 8.0% in 2019 and 2020,
7.0% in 2021 through 2030, and 6.0% each year thereafter.
Mortality Rate Based on the 2017 CalPERS Valuation

Healthcare Trend Rate

Because the benefits are not funded, the discount rate is equal to the 20-Year Bond Rate.
The Port has chosen to use the “Fidelity General Obligation AA Index” as its 20-year
bond rate. That Index was 1.92% at June 30 2021, and 3.69% at June 30, 2022.

E. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.69 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Port
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees
and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total OPEB liability.
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued
F. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The changes in the total OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance at June 30, 2022
(Measurement date 06/30,/2021) $ 849,375
Changes in the year:
Service cost 8,346
Interest on the total pension liability 16,009
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions (197,419)
Benefit payments (31,178)
Administrative expenses .
Net changes (203,742)
Balance at June 30, 2023
(Measurement date 06/30/2022) $ 645,633

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Port if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the
current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2022:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.69%) (3.69%) (4.69)
Total OPEB Liability $ 747487 % 645633  $ 563,411
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend

Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Port if it were calculated using health
care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30, 2022:

OPEB contributions subsequent to

measurement date
Changes of assumptions

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 31,178 $ -
28,249 (106,759)

Differences between expected and actual

experience
Net differences between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments

Total

4,633 (43,929)

$ 64,060 $  (150,688)

I. Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in
OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized
as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be
recognized in future OPEB expense. The recognition period differs depending on the

source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments

All other amounts
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued
]J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) of Resources Related to OPEB
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Port recognized OPEB expense of ($3,542). For

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 31,178 % -
Changes of assumptions 28,249 (106,759)
Differences between expected and actual
experience 4,633 (43,929)
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments - -
Total $ 64060 $ (150,688)

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized as expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal Year Ending Outflows/Inflows
June 30: of Resources
2024 $ (91,993)
2025 (24,337)
2026 (1,476)
$ (117,806)
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9.

10.

11.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Workers’ Compensation coverage is provided through the City’s self-insurance program.
The Port has no self-insured retention associated with this coverage.

All property and liability insurance coverage is provided through a broker. Deductible
amounts range from $250 to $1,000,000.

In the last five years no claims were filed against the Port which exceeded its insurance
coverage limits.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Port had committed approximately $850,000 and $832,000
respectively for professional services contracts and capital improvement projects.

LEASES
A. Lessor

The Port is a lessor for noncancellable leases of buildings and faciliies. The Port
recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide
and fund financial statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the Port initially measures the lease receivable at the
present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently,
the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. The
deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease
receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement
date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over the life
of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the Port determines (1) the discount rate it uses
to discount the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease
receipts as follows:

e The Port uses bond interest rate as the discount rate for leases.

o The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.

o Lease receipts included in the measurement of the lease receivable is composed of
fixed payments from the lessee.

The Port monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its

lease, and will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain
changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.
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11. LEASES (Continued)
B. Leases Receivable (Port as Lessor)

The terms and balances related to leases receivable and deferred inflows of resources as of
June 30, 2023 were:

Remaining Expiration
Term Lease Date
Original  Lease Ending Duration Term Extension  Including
Lessee Property Address Lease Date Date (Years) (years) Years Options
. 117 Hinman Rd, Redwood
New Cingular City, CA 94063 9/15/2020  9/14/2030 10 9 5 9/14/2035
130 Heckner Rd, Redwood
Clean Harbors City, CA 94063 4/1/2021  3/31/2026 5 4 5 3/31/2031
775 Seaport Blvd, Redwood
Cemex City, CA 94063 1/1/2017 12/31/2026 10 5 10 12/31/2036
_ 679 Seaport Blvd, Redwood -
Seaport Refining City, CA 94063 1/1/2016 12/31/2022 6 1 5  12/31/2027
. . 699 Seaport Blvd, Redwood _ _
SimsMetal America City, CA 94063 5/1/2018  4/30/2033 15 11 5 4/30/2038
(Continued below)
Monthly Lease
Revenue Receivable Deferred Inflow
Interest Lease as of Balance at of Resources at
Lessee Revenue Revenue June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
New Cingular $ 11,252 $ 18844 § 2508 $ 311,198 3 300,237
Clean Harbors 48,071 133,837 15,159 1,300,547 1,246,507
Cemex 212,455 306,749 43,267 5,903,089 5,683,088
Seaport Refining 21,924 107,472 10,783 567,896 540,983
SimsMetal America 215,485 408,515 52,000 5,934,180 5,659,923

$ 509187 § 975417 § 123,717 $ 14016910 § 13,430,738

The future principal and interest lease receivables as of June 30, were as follows:

For the Year
Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 1010116 $ 474488 $ 1,484,604

2025 1,046,040 438,564 1,484,604
2026 1,083,244 401,360 1,484,604
2027 1,121,770 362,834 1,484,604
2028-2032 5,409,506 1,223,200 6,632,706
2033-2037 3,953,099 3,953,099 7,906,199
2038 393,135 2,790 395,925
Totals $ 14016910 $ 6,856,335 $ 20,873,245
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12.

13.

14.

PLEDGES OF FUTURE REVENUES

The Master Indenture for the Series 2015 Bonds and Series 2012 Bonds requires the Port to
pledge its annual Net Revenues (defined as operating income plus depreciation, interest
income and non-operating income) in an amount equal to at least 120% of the annual debt
service requirement each fiscal year, through final maturities of the Bonds or early
retirement of the Bonds, whichever first occurs. The Series 2015 Bonds mature June 1,
2030; the Series 2012 Bonds mature June 1, 2032. At June 30, 2023, the ratio of Net
Revenues to the debt service payments due during Fiscal Year 2023 was 6.61 (661%).

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIOS

The Second Supplemental Indenture, applicable to the Series 2012 Bonds, specifies
additional reporting requirements and action to be taken in the event the Debt Service
Coverage Ratio (DSCR) falls below specific levels. At a DSCR of less than 1.40, the Port is
required to provide quarterly reports to the Trustee and the bondholders. At a DSCR of
less than 1.20, the Port is required to hire an approved consultant to examine the Port’s
rates and operations, and to implement reasonable recommendations made by the
consultant. A DSCR of less than 1.00 for two consecutive years is an immediate Event of
Default. At June 30, 2023, the DSCR was 6.61.

MINIMUM OPERATING RESERVE

The Series 2012 Bond Purchase Agreement requires that the Port maintain a Minimum
Operating Reserve. The Minimum Operating Reserve is defined as unrestricted cash
reserves in an amount at least 1.5 times the annual maintenance and operation costs as
defined in the Master Indenture. The definition of annual maintenance and operation
costs, as applied to the Port’s financial statements, is equal to Operating Expenses net of
depreciation. At June 30, 2023, unrestricted cash reserves were 4.77 times Operating
Expenses net of depreciation.

The Continuing Disclosure requirements for the Series 2015 Bond prescribe the
information to be included in the Annual Report to the Port’s Series 2015 bondholders and
repositories. Among those requirements is calculation of the Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(Net Revenues divided by Maximum Annual Debt Service). At June 30, 2023, the Debt
Service Coverage Ratio was 6.61 (661%).
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Port of Redwood City

Required Supplementary Information

ATTACHMENT A

For the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION FLAN

A. Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 Years®

Miscelloncous Flan

Measurement Period
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service Cosl
Inicrest
Changes of Benefil Terms
Dilference Between Expecled and Actual Experlence
Changes of Assumptions
Changes in proporlion
Benefit P Refunds of Empl
Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liabillty
Total Pension Liability - Beginning

Tolal Pension Liability - Ending (a)

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Conlribulions - Emplayer
Contribultions - Employee
Nel Investment [ncome {2)
Benefil Pay ding Refunds of
Comlribulions
Nel Pan to Plan Resource Movemenl
Administralive Expense
Other Miscellancous Income/ (Expense) (1)
Net Change in Fiduclary Net Pasition
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning (2)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Endlng (b)

ploy

Plan Net Position Liabitity/{Assel) - Ending (a) - (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Pasition as a Percenlage of the Tatal
Pension Liability

Caverad Payroll

Plan Net Pension Liability/{Asset) as a Peccentage of
Cavered Payroll

2021-22 202021 2019-20 2018-19 201718 2016-17 2015-16 201415
213,342 188,003 5 18,63 S5 18221 S 185391 182006 S 133,198 114,428
781,642 760387 730309 702,295 668,148 666,678 558,107 473,041

: . : . 72,632 .
(89,969) 6,764 (15377) 59,436 48,082 8423 (13,035)
341,618 5 . . 74.522) 551,649 (114,655)

B - : . . 540,585 -

(531,580) (507,143} (495,307 (458,764) (418,112) {405,623) (351,126) (301,643)
715,053 448,011 401,259 485,228 409,488 1,503,718 412,611 158,116

10,102,692 9,654,681 9,253,425 8,768,197 8,358,709 6,614,991 6,402,180 6,244,064

10,817,745 10,102,692 9,654,664 9,253,425 8,768,197 8,358,709 5,814,991 6,402,180
410,355 391,406 393,353 303,350 277,848 198,395 165,636 138,716

93,488 86,112 84,727 78,699 82,020 85,018 69,361 56,707
(698,217) 1,703,925 358,836 448,008 669,196 671,110 27,988 102,554
(531,580) (507,143) 495,307) (438,764) #18112) (405,623) (351,126) (301,643)

(5,707) (7,487) (10,098) (4,850) {9,884)

. . . 16 (18,769) .

(701,661) 1,666,513 33151 366,549 582,299 548,900 (87,941) 16,53
8,028,356 6,361,543 6,030,035 5,663,486 5,081,167 4,532,287 4,620,228 4,603,894
7,326,695 8,028,356 6.361,506 6,030,035 5,663,486 5,081,187 4,532,287 4,620,228
3,491,050 2,074,336 3,293,138 3,223,390 3,104,711 3,277,522 2,282,704 1,781,952

67.73% 79.47% 65.89% 65.17% 64.59% 60.79% 66.50% 7247%
1,153,904 1,078,587 1,059,790 967,648 856,970 754,684 716,024 655,667
302.54% 19232% 310.73% 333.12% 362.29% 434.29% 318.80% 271.76%

(1) During Fiscal Yoar 2017-18, as a result of Governmenlal Accounling Standards Board Statoment (GASB) No.73, Accuunling and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefil Plans Other than Pens

CalPERS reporied ils proporlionaly shane of aclivity relaled to p

adoption of GASB 75.

beneflts for partici

in the Sale of California’s agenl OPEB plan, Accardingly, CalPERS recorded a one-lime expense a:

Additicnally, CalPERS cmployees parlicipale in various Slate of Callfornla, agent pension plans and during Fiscal Year 2017-18, CalPERS recorded 4 correclion \u previcusly reporled financial stalements
reflect its proparlivnate share of activity related to pensions in accordance with GASB Slalement No.68, Accounling and Financial Reporting (or Pensions (GASB 68).

(2) Includes any beginning af year adjusiment.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the Isl year of mplementalion, therefore only eight years arc shown
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1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION FLAN, Continued

8. SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS — Last 10 Years (1)

MiceBancots Plan {1

2021-22 202021 2019-20 2018-19 201718 211617 201516 ne1s
Actuarially determined contribution (2) s 109638 S 45438 S 298,295 S 262674 S 20354 5 198395 S 165,636 5 158,716
Coniribution in relallon Lo the actuarially delermined

coniributions (1.091,638) (391.333) {311,314) (262.674) (230354 (198,395) (165,636) (158,716)
Conlribulion deficiency (excess) 5 0 s (45273) 5 P29 S - 5 -5 -5 .S -
Cavered payroll S 1153904 S 1078387 S 1059790 S 967518 S 856970 S 754,681 S 76024 5 635,667
Conlrib asap fe of covered-cmp

payroll (3) 94 60% 36 28% 20.39% 27.15% 2688% 2629% 213% un%
(1) As prescribed in GASB 68, paragraph 46, the i ion p in tha Schedule of Plan C should also be p as of employer's mos! recen fiscal year-end

The employcr is responsible for determining, this information as prescribed by the standurd as his data is not availuble lo CalPERS

(2) Employers ace assumed lo make contribulions equal o the acluarially determined coniribullons Howevee, same employers may choose lo make additional conlribulions lowards
their liabilily. Employ ibutions for such plans exceed (he lally ibuli

(3) Includes anc year's payroll growth using 275 pevcent payrofl assumption for flscal yeat ended June 30, 2018, 3 00 percent payroll assumplion for fiscal yoarsended June 30, 2014-17.
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2. OTHER POST EMFLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
{A Cos\-Gharing Mulliple Employer Plan)

A. Schedule of Changes in Tolal OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10 Yeors®

Measurement Period (U]

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

m

Service Cosl

Interesl

Changes of Benefil Terms

Differance 8elween Expecled and Aclual Expericnce
Changes of Assumplions

Benefit Payments

Net Change in Tatal OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)

Covered Payrall

“Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

2021-22 2020-21 2(019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
8,846 6,761 5336 5 12,928 12,746 14,623
16,009 16,330 18,925 24,324 23,193 20,261
. 97,275 (127,603) . .
{197,419) 68,972 72,042 37,647 (5,925) (68,366)
(31,178) (31,427) (19,443) (9,711) (2.126) (8.400)
(203,742) 158,131 76,878 (62,417) 20,588 (41,882)
849,375 691,24 614,366 676,783 656,195 698,077
643,633 849,375 691,284 S 614,366 676,783 656,195
371,346 343,288 410,854 s 501,790 632232 609,562
173.86% 247.42% 168.25% 122.43% 107.05% 107.65%

Historical nformation is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 i appicable.
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2. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB), Continued
(A Cost-Sharing Mulliple Employer Plan)

B. Schedule of Contributions - Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) S = $ - 5 = 3 - 3 - 5 -
Contribulions in relalion to the ADC 31,178 31,178 31,427 15,869 9,949 9,426
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 31,178 $ 31178 $ 31427 $ 15869 $ 9919 5 9426
Covered-employee payroll 371,346 343288 5 343288 § 410854 $ 501,790 § 632,232
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.4% 9.1% 9.2% 3.9% 2.0% 15%

Notes to Schednle:

Methods and ptions used to d ine contri
Actuarial Cost Methad Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/ Period Straightline Amartization
Asset Valuation Method Market value
Inflation 275%
Payroll Growth 3% annual increases
Investment Rate of Return 3.69%

Healthcare cost-trend rates 6.0% to 8.0%

Relirement Age The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2074 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

Mortality Rates are taken from the 2017 CalPERS valuation.

« Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.
Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Of the Port of Redwood City
Redwood City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
basic financial statements of the Port of Redwood City, California (Port), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated April 5, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Port’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Port’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that have not been identified.

Accountancy Corporation 1925,228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 £ maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 49 w mazeassaciates.com
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port'’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated April 5, 2024, which
is an integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Port’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Mm L& A%oa‘o&g

Pleasant Hill, California
April 5, 2024
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